
 

 

 

 

COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Wednesday, 26th January, 2022 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

The Guildhall 

 
 



2 

COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 

Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 

to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the 

Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking 

space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which 

can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to 

attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make 

any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 

Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published 

on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the 

meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will 

be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 

papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 

film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 

Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 

electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 

worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Communities Committee 
Wednesday, 26 January 2022 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor James Stanley (C) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Jabbar Riaz (L) 

 
Councillor Bill Amos (C) 

Councillor Marjory Bisset (G) 
Councillor James Carver (C) 
Councillor Tom Collins (L) 

Councillor Lynn Denham (L) 
 

Councillor Nida Hassan (C) 

Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C) 
Councillor Mike Johnson (C) 
Councillor Matthew Lamb (L) 

 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 

Member of the Committee. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 

3. Public Participation  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 

Member of the Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 6 

 Of the meeting held on 3rd November 2021 to be approved and signed. 

 

5. Setting of the Budget for 2022/23 and Medium Term Financial Plan to 
2026/27  

Page(s): 7 - 18 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance 
Tel: 01905 722007 



4 

 1. That the Committee note the proposed Budgets for the various services 
identified for 2022/23; 

 
2. That the Committee consider the priorities within each service and 

recommends any change for the services’ Budgets including the Income and 
Efficiency plans; 

 

3. That the Committee consider the services’ Capital programme and future 
projects and recommends any changes or additions; and 

 
4. That the Committee review any new budget proposals from members and 

makes recommendations to Policy and Resources Committee as appropriate. 

 

6. Performance Report Quarter 3  

Page(s): 19 - 40 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 

Tel: 01905 722407 

 That the Communities Committee note the Council’s Quarter 3 performance for 
2021/22. 

 

7. Completion Report on the Thriving EU Migrants Community and City 
Project (Brexit)  

Page(s): 41 - 88 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Warwick Neale, Interim Head of Community Services 
Tel: 01905 752971 

 That the Committee note the contents of the report and in particular the direct and 

indirect outcomes delivered through the project. 
 

8. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration. 
 



COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE 

 
3rd November 2021 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor James Stanley in the Chair 

 Councillors B. Amos, Barnes, Bisset, Carver, 
Denham, Ditta, Johnson, Lamb, Riaz (Vice-

Chair) and Stafford 
 

Officers: Shane Flynn, Corporate Director – Finance 

and Resources 
Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director – Homes 

and Communities 
Warwick Neale, Head of Community 
Services 

Ann Nicholls, Detached Team Project 
Leader, Community Services 

 
 

20 Appointment of Substitutes  

 
Councillor Barnes for Councillor Collins, Councillor Ditta for Councillor Hassan, 

Councillor Stafford for Councillor Stephen Hodgson. 
 

21 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 

 
22 Public Participation  

 

None. 
 

23 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21st July 2021 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

24 Freedom Leisure - Contract Year 5 Annual Report (April 2020 to March 
2021)  

 
The Committee received the Freedom Leisure Annual Report 2020/21. Rob Tyler, 
Freedom Leisure Contracts Manager, was in attendance and gave a presentation. 

He explained the challenges faced during the 2020/21 financial year due to Covid-
19 and the way in which Freedom Leisure had responded, with significant support 

from Worcester City Council, to provide the best service possible in the 
circumstances. Rob Tyler and Jeremy Rowe, Freedom Leisure Operations Director, 
responded to questions from Members. 

 
In summary, the following main points were made: 

 
 Rob Tyler explained that, whilst the overall position remains challenging, 

things are moving in the right direction and the biggest customer demand 

is likely to fall in the period January to March, so he remained confident 
that recovery will progress. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 3rd November 2021 2 

 
 

 

 Despite a national shortage of swimming teachers, the swim school has 
recovered strongly, although  2330 Under 16s from key priority Wards are 

still able to access free swimming. Over 75s are also able to swim for free, 
subject to a £10 annual fee. 

 

 In response to a question about Freedom Leisure’s position as a real living 
wage employer, it was explained that Freedom Leisure  are working on the 

basis of the existing contract. Staffing is a priority and they are looking to 
close the pay gap, especially for young people, but there is a commercial 
challenge. Staff retention is also important for Freedom Leisure are 

committed to training and development. 
 

The Chair thanked Freedom Leisure and all their staff for their work over the 
preceding 18 months. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the content of the Freedom Leisure 
Annual Report 2020/21. 

 
25 Freedom Leisure - Proposed Fees & Charges for 2022  

 

The Committee considered the proposed Fees and Charges submitted by Freedom 
Leisure for 2022. The Corporate Director – Operations, Homes and Communities 

presented the report and explained the proposal from Freedom Leisure was to 
increase prices by an average of 3.2% across the various categories. Prices 

remain comparable with neighbouring authorities. 
 
Both the Corporate Director and Rob Tyler from Freedom Leisure responded to 

questions from Committee Members. In the ensuing discussion, the following 
main points were made: 

 
 Freedom Leisure can provide more information on the take-up of free 

swimming by young people. They will also consider how this can be 

promoted more widely. 
 

 Reference was made to the opportunity for 15 additional free hours of 
tennis in the park. It was noted that this had been agreed for 2021 
following consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair, and the Corporate 

Director stated that Officers will undertake a similar discussion with the 
Chair and Vice-Chair regarding the potential for take-up in 2022.  

 
 The eligibility of care leavers for the Advance 50 scheme was raised. Rob 

Tyler explained that this had not been a consideration when the contract 

was originally drawn up but Freedom Leisure are willing to look into 
whether this can be offered. 

 
 Officers can investigate whether Covid recovery funding can be utilised to 

assist low income families with transport to leisure facilities. 

 
 

 
 

Page 2



 3rd November 2021 3 

 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee agree to recommend to the Income 

Generation Sub-Committee and the Council, the approval of the proposed 
Fees & Charges submitted by Freedom Leisure for 2022, covering the 

period 1st January 2022 to 31st December 2022 inclusive, as set out in 
Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

26 Hosting of the Knife Angel - The National Monument Against Violence and 
Aggression  

 
The Committee considered a report on plans for Worcester to host the Knife 
Angel, a 27ft tall artwork made from over 100,000 knives and blades received 

from police forces across the UK.  The Head of Community Services presented the 
report and explained the background. The Knife Angel had toured around the UK 

and hosts have been able to use the opportunity to raise awareness of the impact 
of violence and aggression on communities. 
 

It was explained that Officers are working with partner agencies on where best to 
locate the Knife Angel, with the preferred option being on the grounds in front of 

Worcester Cathedral from 1st March to 31st March 2022. Whilst in situ there will be 
a series of workshops within the cathedral, school visits, classroom activities and 
interactive events at the statue.   

 
This report sought approval for the allocation of £7,500 to ensure that the full 

costs of hosting the Knife Angel and delivering an associated engagement and 
education campaign around it, can be met.  It is proposed to meet these costs 

from the allocation from reserves of £50,000 towards arts and cultural events 
approved by the Policy & Resources Committee in June 2021. 
 

In the ensuing discussion, Committee Members expressed support for hosting. 
Reference was made to the proposed budget of £2,000 for education and 

engagement and a request was made for Officers to consider whether this can be 
increased so as to give greater support to educational activities. There was also a 
discussion as to whether outside the Cathedral is the best location. Cathedral 

Square was suggested as an alternative. Officers agreed to consider the feedback 
from the discussion. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee: 
 

1. Note the contents of this report and in particular the work being 
undertaken for Worcester City to host the Knife Angel during Spring 

2022, supported by a programme of activities and materials to raise 
awareness of the impacts of violence and aggression; and 

 

2. Agree to recommend to Policy & Resources Committee the allocation 
of £7,500 from the funding towards Arts & Cultural Events approved 

in June 2021 towards the costs associated with those activities 
outlined at recommendation 1 above. 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 3



 3rd November 2021 4 

 
 

27 Setting of the Budget for 2022/23 and MTFP to 2026/27  

 
The Committee considered a report on the Budgets for the various services for 

2021/22 and progress made in delivering the projects included in the City Plan 
relevant to this Committee. The Corporate Director – Finance and Resources 
presented the report and responded to questions from Committee Members. 

 
It was noted that the Medium Term Financial Plan indicates a budget gap which 

will need to be addressed. 
 
Officers highlighted that all Members are invited to submit suggestions for 

potential service improvements. This can be done now so as to be able to feed 
proposals into the Committee’s consideration of the 2022/23 budget at its 

meeting in January. Members were also asked to consider whether the current 
capital programme projects are still appropriate for each service and whether 
there are any further needs that require addressing. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee agree to note: 

 
1. the Budgets for the various services identified for 2021/22; and 
 

2. the progress made in delivering the projects included in the City Plan 
and City Delivery Fund that are relevant to this Committee and the 

programme of work resourced. 
 

28 Consultation on a Proposed Public Spaces Protection Order to Close 
Footpath WR858 (Brickfields Crossing) and WR678 (Kays Crossing)  
 

The Committee considered a report on the outcome of the public consultation on 
proposals to create Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO) to prohibit the use of 

two footpaths in Worcester that include railway level crossings, due to anti-social 
behaviour. The Head of Community Services presented the report and 
summarised the main findings.  

 
Based on the outcome, Officers recommended that the Council should undertake 

two separate public consultation exercises, gathering residents’ views on the 
wording of the draft railway PSPOs at set out at Appendix 2 to the report, to 
prohibit the use of Footpath WR858 (Brickfields Crossing) and WR678 (Kays 

Crossing) for 3 years. The results would be reported the March 2022 meeting of 
the Committee. 

 
Committee Members expressed support for proceeding with the proposed 
consultation exercises. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee agreed to: 

 
1. note the contents of this report in particular the consultation 

responses at Appendix 1; 

 
2. approve the undertaking of a four-week public consultation on the 

proposed Public Spaces Protection Order to prohibit the use of 
footpath WR858 (Brickfields Crossing) and WR678 (Kays Crossing) at 
Appendix 2; and 

Page 4



 3rd November 2021 5 

 
 

 

3. note that the results of the public consultation will be reported back 
to this Committee on 16th March 2022 to decide whether to create the 

Orders. 
 

29 Housing Assistance Policy Update  

 
The Committee considered a proposal for an updated Housing Assistance Policy. 

The Corporate Director – Homes and Communities presented the report and 
explained the reasons for the changes, which were set out in the report.  
 

In response to a question about how the policy supports Children with SEN and 
disabilities, the Corporate Director agreed to provide written clarification of the 

current Disabled Facilities Grant criteria with Committee Members. 
 
Committee Members expressed support for the proposed changes. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee agree to: 

 
1. approve the increase in the current level of Discretionary Disabled 

Facilities Grant top up from £10,000 to £25,000; 

 
2. note the further minor amendments to the Housing Assistance Policy 

at section 4 and 5; and 
 

3. approve delegated authority to the Head of Homes & Communities in 
consultation with Communities Committee Chair and Vice-Chair to 
make future small amendments to the policy as required. 

 
30 Quarter 2 Performance Report for 2021/22  

 
The Committee considered a report on the Council’s Quarter 2 performance for 
Communities for 2021/22. The Scorecard had been refreshed with projects 

completed in the last financial year replaced by new projects as previously agreed 
by this Committee.  

 
 
A question was raised regarding comparative graphs, specifically whether the 

same scale can be used on all graphs for clarity. The Corporate Director – 
Operations, Homes and Communities agreed to take this into account for future 

reports. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee agree to note the Council’s Quarter 2 

performance for 2021/22. 
 

31 Any Other Business  
 
None. 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 5



 3rd November 2021 6 

 
 

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 8.55p.m. 

 
 

 
 

Chair at the meeting on 

26th January 2022 

Page 6



 
 

Report to: Communities Committee, 26th January 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director – Finance and Resources  
 

 
Subject: SETTING OF THE BUDGET FOR 2022/23 AND MTFP TO 2026/27 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Committee note the proposed Budgets for the various services 
identified for 2022/23; 

1.2 That the Committee consider the priorities within each service and 
recommends any change for the services’ Budgets including the Income and 

Efficiency plans; 

1.3 That the Committee consider the services’ Capital programme and future 
projects and recommends any changes or additions; and 

 
1.4 That the Committee review any new budget proposals from members and 

makes recommendations to Policy and Resources Committee as appropriate. 
 

2. Background 

 
2.1 The proposed summary budgets for 2022/23 are contained in Appendix 1. These 

provide detailed budgets for each of the Council’s services covering both income and 
expenditure. 

2.2 The Council also produces a Medium Term Financial Plan for the next 5 years setting 

out the high level pressures and opportunities that are likely to need to be 
addressed. 

2.3 The management fee receivable from the Council’s Leisure Services provider has 
been waived for 2021/22 so far with an, as yet unquantified, payment expected to 
be received for the 4th quarter. Memberships are currently running at 77% of pre-

pandemic levels, whilst income from swimming lessons is 20% higher. The Budget 
for 2022/23 assumes that the leisure centres will be open with the normal level of 

membership.  

3. Review of Service Budgets  
 

3.1 Members are asked to review the budget for each service and the initiatives that are 
remaining in the Income and Efficiency plan, see Appendix 2. This includes some 

items that have been carried forward from the current year. 

3.2 In light of any changes experienced by the services in the last 12 months, Members 
are asked to consider whether amendments are needed to the services’ budgets in 

order to continue to achieve service objectives and to deliver the relevant aims of 
the City Plan. 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



3.3 Given that the Council faces a reduction in its future funding, this exercise is likely to 
result in a reduction or reallocation of resources rather than an increase in the net 

budget available. 

4. Projects and Capital Expenditure 

4.1 In a separate report to this committee meeting, Members have received a progress 

report on the various projects aligned to this committee. In addition, the Council’s 
draft Capital Programme to 2026/27 is shown in Appendix 3. 

4.2 Members are asked to consider whether the current projects are still appropriate for 
each service and whether there are any further needs that require addressing. 
Members will recall that the previous meeting of this committee on 3 November 

2021 approved funding of £7,500 for the hosting of the Knife Angel. This was 
subsequently approved by the Policy and Resources Committee meeting on 16 

November 2021. Expenditure is expected to be in March 2022 and this is, therefore, 
a 2021/22 budget item. 

4.3 The approach adopted should be to focus on addressing the key themes identified in 
the City Plan. This should include greater detail on the proposed spend against each 
allocation and phasing the projects across the full 5 year term of the MTFP based on 

the need and importance of each one. 

4.4 In addition to previously discussed proposals, the Chair of the Committee has 

received new items for consideration. The project proposals received so far are 
summarised in the table shown below. 

Proposal Amount £ Notes 

Worcester Food Bank 45,000 Continuation of funding for three years. 

Northwick Park 10,000 Installation of an artificial cricket wicket  

 Total 55,000  

 

4.5 During the period 2019/20 to 2021/22 the Council has provided one-off funding to 

the Foodbank of £15,000 p.a. drawn from the Hardship Fund reserve. A detailed 
report of the proposal was submitted to the Committee at its meeting of 4 February 

2019. Members may wish to continue this funding and propose this for inclusion in 
the 2022/23 budget with funding from the Hardship Fund. 

4.6 The proposal for Northwick Park cricket pitch may be deemed capital as it is above 
the £10,000 threshold. However, as the costs may be below this level it is proposed 
to treat it as a revenue reserve item to ensure that there is funding available, should 

the committee approve the scheme. Further details are provided in Annex A to this 
report. 

4.7 In addition to the above, the Chair of the Committee has received two proposals 
which are of a capital nature and therefore will not have a material revenue impact 
in the coming financial year but will need to be built into future capital programmes. 

The Committee will need to receive a further report setting out the full design, 
business case and financial implications during the year. The schemes are as follows: 

Page 8



 

Scheme Initial 

estimated 
capital cost 

(£) 

 

Proposal 

Comer Gardens Institute 140,000 To convert the upper floor of the 
Institute to a community facility 

area.  

Gorse Hill and Elbury 

Mount Local Nature 
Reserve 

50,000 For changes to the existing 

entrance gates and fencing that 
could reduce or even deter future 

anti-social behaviour. 

 

4.8 The proposal for Comer Gardens Institute is a capital project but will require the 
development of feasibility work and associated business case for the use of the first 
floor of for community purposes. The ground floor of the Council owned building is 

used as a community centre.  The first floor is a self-contained flat which is held on a 
long lease from the Council by Platform Housing.  Now that the flat is vacant 

Platform has indicated its willingness to hand back the accommodation on terms to 
be agreed.  Feasibility work, to be commissioned, would investigate the Comer 
Gardens Institute’s proposal that flat is converted as additional space for the 

community centre, principally to facilitate its use for dance classes presently held in 
the ground floor hall.  A provisional scope of work has been costed at £140k 

including fees.  Further design works and surveys will confirm the feasibility and 
enable a business case to be developed with the Institute for a bid for capital 
funding. 

4.9 The Gorse Hill and Elbury Mount Local Nature Reserve is the highest point in 
Worcester.   Visitors to this haven of wildlife benefit from amazing views of the City. 

During warmer months with longer daylight periods, neighbours to Elbury Mount are 
suffering from anti-social behaviour (ASB).  West Mercia Police recorded more than 
10 incidents of illegal use of motorbikes on the access road and stones thrown from 

the elevated vantage point at the back of houses on Kenwood Avenue.  As a result of 
the combined reports a problem-solving plan was created. The plan comprised of 

patrols from the youth intervention team and police and a temporary CCTV camera 
positioned on Ambleside Drive.  The result of these measures led to a reduction in 
the ASB. Officers believe that the ASB is likely to return once again in the spring.  

Consultation with Severn Trent Water and West Mercia Police has identified an 
opportunity to make changes to the existing four entrance gates and approximately 

300m of fencing that could reduce or even deter future ASB. This could save officer 
time and resources patrolling the site and improve the lives of those people living 

next to the reserve. Officers would consult with neighbours and users of the nature 
reserve to ensure any changes will not have a negative impact on access. The cost is 
estimated to be up to £50,000. 

4.10 Given that the Council faces a reduction in its future funding, recommendations 
should be prioritised to ensure the limited resources are allocated most effectively. 

5 Implications 
 
5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

Page 9



Should members have any proposals for new City Plan themes or projects that 
require funding for inclusion in the 2022-2027 MTFP, these should be discussed and, 

if appropriate, approved by this committee. They will then be forwarded to the 
meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee on 8 February 2022 for 
consideration along with those proposals submitted by the council’s other policy 

committees and committees. 
 

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 
Responsibility for setting the budget rests with Full Council which receives 
recommendations from the Policy and Resources Committee.  Any proposals agreed 

by this Committee must therefore be forwarded to the Policy and Resources 
Committee for consideration at its meeting of 8 February 2022 before being 

recommended, if approved, to the Full Council meeting of 22 February 2022. 
 

5.3 Risk Implications 
The pandemic has had a significant effect on the Council’s income from Fees and 
Charges, particularly from car parking. Whilst there has been some recovery from 

the low levels experienced during the periods of lockdown, income has yet to return 
to the pre-pandemic levels. The Budget for 2022/23 assumes that all income 

streams will have recovered and will be back to the levels experienced in previous 
years. 

 

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 
None directly arising from this report. 

 
5.5 Equality Implications 

None directly arising from this report. 

 
5.6 Human Resources Implications 

None directly arising from this report. 
 

5.7 Health and Safety Implications 

None directly arising from this report. 
 

5.8 Social, Economic and Environmental Implications 
 None directly arising from this report. 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer: Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance – Tel: 01905 722007 

mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: Report to Communities Committee 4 February 2019: 

Universal Credit Hardship Fund 

Page 10



ANNEX A 

Installation of an artificial cricket wicket at Northwick Park 
 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 Further to the increased interest in cricket at grass roots level following the England 

cricket team’s World Cup success in 2019 and the more recent launch of the one-day 

Hundred completion, it is recognised that the City does not have a municipal cricket 
wicket for hire or free public use. 

1.2 Local demand is further identified by the hundreds of children who attend the ECB  
‘Inspiring Generations’ programme. All Stars Cricket is a development pathway for  
5-8 year olds and was established in 2017 and encourages junior players to progress 

onto Dynamos Cricket (8-11 years).  

1.3 Where All Stars Cricket seeks to engage children in cricket activity and learning the 

skills, Dynamos Cricket launched in 2021 seeks to engage children in learning how to 
play, introducing a modified soft ball format as competitive progression with a view 
to eventual transition through to hardball cricket. The programme is also strongly 

linked to The Hundred competition. 

1.4 Another format of the game is tape ball which is a tennis ball that has been 

modified to give it greater weight, speed and distance while still being easier to play 
with than the conventional cricket ball. The variation was pioneered 
in Karachi, Pakistan and is credited with Pakistan's famous production of fast 

bowlers as children are brought up playing the game using a tape ball in which 
various skills are developed. The increasing popularity of tape ball in informal, local 

cricket has transformed the way games are played in cricket-loving nations such 
as India, Sri Lanka, and Bangladesh, but most famously Pakistan.  

1.5 The demand for Tape ball cricket and other shorter formats of the game has 

increased substantially and traditional local cricket clubs are not able to cater for all 
these formats.  As a result, recreational cricketers have been ‘locked out’  of the 

game due to the need to pay membership fees to access facilities at local clubs, or 
such clubs being unable to meet the variation of demands and therefore some local 
cricketers are having to travel to Droitwich and Lower Moor to access the type of 

facilities they require. 

2.  Information  

 
2.1 Following consultation with the Council’s City Services team, Northwick Park was 

identified as the most suitable location and it is proposed to install a surface to meet 

the following specification: 

 A professional system which is surfaced with a high density superior woven cricket 
carpet that is free draining, spike resistant and responsive to spin and seam bowling. 

 
 The synthetic components are all manufactured in the UK to meet stringent quality 

checks and BS:EN requirements. 

 

Page 11



 That the appointed contractor installs the surface themselves and does not sub 
contract any of the works to ensure the quality finish required. 

 
2.2 A pitch of 30m x 2.74m in dimension would cost an estimated £8,500 net of VAT. 
 

2.3 In proceeding with this project the best time of year for installation would be around 
the start of the cricket season in April/May, when hopefully the weather has been dry 

enough to ensure the surface is firm underfoot, as the contractor will need to 
transport around 20 tonnes of materials across the surface. Inclement weather 
during that period would necessitate a delay, in order to avoid any surface damage 

to the surrounding areas, particularly the two adjacent football pitches. 
 

2.4 Following installation, City Services would be required to put a heavy roller over the 
surface on a weekly basis in the early stages, to protect the longevity of the product. 

 
2.5 The artificial pitch installation will also generate a modest income for the council as 

bookings for organised matches would be required via the City Services team and 

this income could be utilised to offset the original installation costs in the longer 
term. 

 
2.6  The projected lifespan of the surface would be a minimum of 10 years and longer 

with a preventative maintenance schedule in place. 
 

Page 12



WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL
BUDGET 2022/23 Appendix 1

COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE
Annual Budget 

2020/21
Final Actuals    

2020/21   
Base Budget 

2021/22
Base Budget 

2022/23

Income & 
Efficiency Plan 

2022/23

Draft Base 
Budget 

2022/23

Employees 1,753,520 1,659,633 1,265,500 1,413,730 0 1,413,730
Premises 1,686,585 1,715,960 710,950 712,460 0 712,460
Transport 6,340 1,340 6,340 6,340 0 6,340
Supplies and Services 443,468 378,361 236,830 240,670 0 240,670
Third Party Payments 2,534,133 2,737,979 1,023,973 1,048,353 (21,000) 1,027,353
Internal Recharges 8,638 8,654 6,860 6,860 0 6,860
Total Expenditure 6,432,684 6,501,927 3,250,453 3,428,413 (21,000) 3,407,413
Grants and Contributions (2,555,265) (2,664,538) (72,600) (70,100) 0 (70,100)
Fees and Charges (151,850) (148,164) (143,850) (143,850) 0 (143,850)
Other Income (1,523,140) (1,022,622) (941,320) (1,024,810) 0 (1,024,810)
Total Income (4,230,255) (3,835,324) (1,157,770) (1,238,760) 0 (1,238,760)

Grand Total 2,202,429 2,666,603 2,092,683 2,189,653 (21,000) 2,168,653

Summary by sub-service:

COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE
Annual Budget 

2020/21
Final Actuals    

2020/21   
Base Budget 

2021/22
Base Budget 

2022/23

Income & 
Efficiency Plan 

2022/23

Draft Base 
Budget 

2022/23

Community Services Management Expenditure 192,050 198,436 92,650 144,100 0 144,100
Community Services Management Income (30,000) (18,511) (30,000) (30,000) 0 (30,000)
Community Services Management Total 162,050 179,925 62,650 114,100 0 114,100
Community Engagement Expenditure 252,080 195,873 208,080 242,140 0 242,140
Community Engagement Income (23,000) (8,516) (23,000) (23,000) 0 (23,000)
Community Engagement Total 229,080 187,357 185,080 219,140 0 219,140
Community Safety Partnership Expenditure 253,570 233,643 164,480 165,870 0 165,870
Community Safety Partnership Income (190,224) (173,560) (9,530) (9,530) 0 (9,530)
Community Safety Partnership Total 63,346 60,083 154,950 156,340 0 156,340
Community Activities Expenditure 555,768 551,093 363,980 374,355 0 374,355
Community Activities Income (68,500) (81,740) (20,000) (20,000) 0 (20,000)
Community Activities Total 487,268 469,353 343,980 354,355 0 354,355
Leisure and Sport Provision Expenditure 125,930 345,768 25,620 26,130 0 26,130
Leisure and Sport Provision Income (656,972) (201,542) (434,540) (473,230) 0 (473,230)
Leisure and Sport Provision Total (531,042) 144,226 (408,920) (447,100) 0 (447,100)
Strategic Housing Expenditure 519,495 456,166 322,670 428,490 0 428,490
Strategic Housing Income (20,500) (24,554) (20,500) (20,500) 0 (20,500)
Strategic Housing Total 498,995 431,612 302,170 407,990 0 407,990
Homelessness Expenditure 3,475,882 3,516,753 1,090,800 1,054,150 0 1,054,150
Homelessness Income (3,087,976) (3,156,053) (476,350) (518,650) 0 (518,650)
Homelessness Total 387,906 360,700 614,450 535,500 0 535,500
Private Sector Housing Expenditure 231,820 227,985 176,020 168,950 0 168,950
Private Sector Housing Income (153,083) (170,846) (143,850) (143,850) 0 (143,850)
Private Sector Housing Total 78,737 57,138 32,170 25,100 0 25,100
Welfare Assistance Scheme Expenditure 149,250 119,631 118,610 120,870 0 120,870
Welfare Assistance Scheme Total 149,250 119,631 118,610 120,870 0 120,870
Museums Service Expenditure 676,839 656,578 687,543 703,358 (21,000) 682,358
Museums Service Total 676,839 656,578 687,543 703,358 (21,000) 682,358

Grand Total 2,202,429 2,666,603 2,092,683 2,189,653 (21,000) 2,168,653

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Worcester City Council - Income and Efficiencies Plan 2022-2024 Appendix 2

Communities Committee

Project Title
2022/23 

£'000
Notes

2023/24 

£'000
Notes

Museums income 6 Review admissions charges.

Museums income 15
Increase income from café, room hire, 

weddings and ticketed events

21 0

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL
CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND FINANCING 2021/22-2026/27 Appendix 3

Scheme 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022-27

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cromwell Crescent Park Improvements 10 0 0 0 0 10

Disabled Facilities Grants 688 688 688 688 688 3,438
Food Waste Collection 0 1,000 0 0 0 1,000

Future High Streets Fund - Overall Project 7,150 7,349 10,862 0 0 25,361

Towns Fund Projects 7,296 2,920 5,346 2,587 0 18,150

Hostile Vehicle Mitigation 153 0 0 0 0 153

Housing Temporary Accomodation 360 0 0 0 0 360

IT Infrastructure Replacement 100 100 100 100 100 500

Litter Bins 323 0 0 0 0 323

Ops Vehicle Replacement 688 1,317 1,089 1,109 1,018 5,221

Property 5-Year Plan 55 45 0 0 0 100

Storage Units 15 0 0 0 0 15

Wheelie Bin Replacements - Domestic and Trade 150 150 150 150 150 750

Arches Project 668 0 0 0 0 668

TOTAL 17,655 13,569 18,235 4,634 1,956 56,049

Financing Source 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022-27

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

External Grants 15,802 11,957 6,034 3,275 688 37,755

S106 Contributions 10 0 0 0 0 10

Earmarked Reserves 360 0 239 0 0 599

Capital Receipts 796 295 7,311 250 250 8,902

Revenue Financing 0 0 0 0 0 0

Borrowing 738 1,317 4,651 1,109 1,018 8,833

TOTAL 17,705 13,569 18,235 4,634 1,956 56,099

Page 17 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report to: Communities Committee, 26th January 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Finance and Resources 
 

 
Subject: QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2021/22 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Communities Committee note the Council’s Quarter 3 performance 
for 2021/22. 

 
2. Performance Reporting Framework 

 
2.1 A suite of Performance Scorecards has been developed providing a one-page 

overview of priority projects, activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) under 

the functions of each committee. 
 

2.2 The Scorecards are supported by a more detailed appendix providing a brief 
narrative update for projects and activities and a visual representation of PIs in the 
form of run graphs or charts as applicable. This provides context in terms of 

progression, trends and seasonal variations to support reporting using RAG 
assessments (Red, Amber or Green). 

 
2.3 The Scorecard has been refreshed for 2021/22 with projects completed in the last 

financial year replaced with new projects as previously agreed by this committee. 

 
2.4 The Quarter 3 performance report for the Communities Committee is attached as 

Appendix 1.   
 

 

 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer:   Jo Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer,  
   01905 722407,  
   Email: Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk  

Background Papers: None 

Page 19 Agenda Item 6

mailto:Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 21 Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



2 
 

Communities Committee 

Performance Report 
 
 

Communities Projects and Actions 2021/22 
 
 

Action Status 

 Cancelled 

 Overdue; Neglected 

 Unassigned; Check Progress 

 Not Started; In Progress; Assigned 

 Completed 
 

  

 

City Centre Public Space Protection Order 

Implementation of the City Centre PSPO has been fully 
undertaken and this project is now complete. 

Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Due Date 30-Mar-2021 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Jan-2020 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome   

 

Partnership Delivery of Inland Waterway Association - Festival of Water 

The IWA Festival of Water at Perdiswell on the weekend of 
28th - 30th August was a great success with an estimated 

attendance of 3,000 each day.  The IWA organisers were 
very pleased with the support and interest they received 

from the Worcester community.   
 

Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Due Date 01-Nov-2021 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Oct-2020 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome   

 

Review of existing Public Space Protection Orders 

During 2021 the Dog Control PSPO was extended for 3 
years (July 2021-2024) and the Alcohol PSPO for three 

years (August 2021-2024). Both extensions were approved 
by Committee. 

 
In Nov 2021 Committee approved a final consultation to be 
undertaken on the specific PSPO Order for 2 x pedestrian 

railway crossing locations but due to resource issues within 
Network Rail (preventing us from obtaining specialist maps) 

we have been unable to progress. It is our intention to 

Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Due Date 30-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

30-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome   

Appendix 1 

Page 22



3 
 

report back to Committee in May 2022 and it is important to 
note that temporary closures remain in place at these 2 

locations. 
 

Community Recovery Strategy 

A 6 monthly update report was presented at H&WB 
Committee on 15th Nov 2021 (H&WB Committee now has 

responsibility for this strategy) with next report to be 
presented to May 2022 Committee. All 9 priority areas 
continue to receive focus through day to day operational 

service delivery, deployment of grant funding to support 
community services and activity and support to partner 

agencies to deliver non statutory activity. 

Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

 

Delivery of 3 affordable housing developments in the City 

The three council owned sites used to increase delivery of 
affordable housing are now fully complete and the 

properties have been let. This has met the affordable 
housing need of 71 households. This project can now be 
closed. 

Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Due Date 31-Aug-2021 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2018 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

 

To develop a Worcester City Homes and Communities Strategy 

It is intended to project plan this piece of work during 
Quarter 4 for progress and delivery through 2022/2023. 

This timing will benefit from the arrival of a new Head of 
Homes & Communities and the completion of the ‘Review of 
Council Led Housing Delivery’ project currently being 

undertaken. 

Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Due Date 31-Jul-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Jul-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

 

Development of Housing Enabling Strategy 

This piece of work commenced in December 2021 and is 
being led by Ark Consultancy with sponsorship/oversight 

from the Corporate Director (Operations, Homes & 
Communities). 
 

An all-member session was held on 2nd Dec 2021 that 
introduced Members to Ark and the project and invited ideas 

and local knowledge etc. A further Members session will be 
held prior to the completion of the project. 
 

Initial work undertaken has included some very valuable 
conversations having been held with key partners including 

RSLs. 

Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Due Date 31-May-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-May-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome  

 

Page 23



4 
 

 
It is intended to report back to both Communities and I&G 

Committee during early Summer 2022 with an options 
appraisal report. 
 

Next Steps Accommodation for Rough Sleepers (Every One In) 

This project was specific to the ‘Everyone In’ programme 

that commenced during Spring 2020 in response to the 
request from Government to provide emergency 
accommodation to rough sleepers and protect them from 

the risks of COVID-19. 
 

This project was completed and all rough sleepers that were 
accommodated at the two locations that supported this 
project were all accommodated in a range of move on 

accommodation. 
 

As part of the Annual Homelessness Update Report that is 
intended to be brought to this Committee in March 2022 
further detailed information will be provided. 

Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome  

 

 

To implement the recommendations from the Child Poverty Task and Finish Group 

Final Report 

Committee responsibility for this project now sits under the 
Health & Wellbeing Committee with update papers taken to 

that Committee on a 6 monthly basis. A link to the 
November 2021 Health & Wellbeing Committee Report is 
included here - Child Poverty Update Final 151121.pdf 

(worcester.gov.uk)   

Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

 
 

Page 24

http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s51977/Child%20Poverty%20Update%20Final%20151121.pdf


5 

 

Communities Key Performance Indicators 2021/22 
 
 

PI Status 

 Alert 

 Warning 

 OK 

 Unknown 

 Data Only 
 

 

Number of Community events supported 

Description: Number of events in community venues supported by the community 

engagement team - includes weekly walks 

 

RAG  Current Value 441 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 320 

The number of community events per month are returning to pre-pandemic numbers.  
Worcester City Council is encouraging communities to hold street parties and this has 

resulted in a slight increase in the number of events for December.  We expect this trend to 
continue into January. 

Page 25



6 

 

No. of Small Community Grants awarded 

Description: Worcester City Council recognises the importance of volunteering in building 

strong and connected communities. The PI monitors the number of local 
organisations awarded Small Community Grants; 
  

1. Small Volunteer Grants - to support organisations to increase the role and 
value of volunteering in their own individual organisations and the 

communities in which we serve. This grant will match fund pound for pound 
(up to a maximum of £1,000) projects that increase volunteering within 
Worcester City. 

  
2. One Worcester Community Grants - open to community groups and 

voluntary sector organisations working across the city of Worcester. Up to 
£2,000 in match funding is available from this grant. The focus of this grant 

scheme is to support project; 
• To connect more people to opportunities in the areas of learning skills, 

training and employment  
• To empower individuals, groups and organisations with capacity and skills to 

enable them to better identify their needs and play a fuller part in contributing 

to their own well being and development   
 

 

RAG  Current Value 8 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 4 

Between October and December the council received and processed 8 community grant 
applications, awarding £10,943.00 to support community projects with Ombersley Road 
Luncheon, Worcestershire Literacy Festival and Fringe, Aspie, Perry Fields Community Assoc, 

City Care at St Paul's Church, Everybody Dave, Worcester Basketball and ESO. 

Page 26



7 

 

Tennis in Parks - Participation for free 

Description: The number of free participations in Tennis in Parks 

 

RAG  Current Value 136 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 51 

Free tennis again achieved target for Q3. Freedom Leisure were able to offer an hour of free 
tennis for families to enjoy every day during the October half term break using the mini 

courts at Cripplegate park. Freedom also utilised social media outlets to advertise the free 
tennis opportunities on offer which enabled them to hit target via the half term sessions, the 
free tennis programmes and the free courts for concessions where combined they reached an 

active participation of 136. 
 

Tennis in Parks - Paid for Participation 

Description: The total number of paid for participants in Tennis in Parks 

 

RAG  Current Value 3,162 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 1,197 

Tennis finished 1965 above the Q3 active participation target. Participation levels dropped as 

Page 27



8 

expected during Q3 due to weather conditions worsening as we entered the winter months 
and the Christmas break. Despite this, throughout the early part of December there were 

very good numbers of children attending coaching courses due to Freedom being able to put 
on coaching lessons in a six week block indoors at Perdiswell Leisure Centre where they 

reached a high of 20 participants in a single session. This compared with participation 
numbers of around 10 a session at the end of Q2 outdoors. 
 

Find It Do It Worcester 

Description: Number of unique visits to Find It Do It Worcester  

 

RAG  Current Value 1,507 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 1,050 

The Find It Do It (FIDI) web portal received 1507 unique visits in December 2021. This is an 

increase compared to previous months and is likely due to the rectification of issues with site 
functionality. Officers are continuing to focus on a piece of work to improve the functionality 
of the site, and to ensure accuracy of content. Future plans to launch a promotional 

campaign and further integration with Community Services and Asset Based Community 
Engagement are planned for February. 

 

Page 28



9 

 

Total number of crime incidents 

Description: Total number of recorded crimes reported to West Mercia Police within 

Worcester 

 

RAG  Current Value 2,834 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Minimise Current Target   

These are the total number of crime figures for October, November and December 2021. 

 
The volume of offences for the third quarter increased when compared with the same period 
two years ago.  The highest crime incident type is violence without injury followed by crimes 

against society and violence with injury. 
 

Crime types and rates are used to inform the South Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership Action Plan.  To deliver on the plan Council officers work alongside the Police and 
partner agencies to respond to local issues and promote services available to residents. 

Page 29



10 

 

Number of anti-social behaviour (ASB) incidents 

Description: Number of recorded anti-social behaviour incidents reported to West Mercia 

Police within Worcester.  

 

RAG  Current Value 1,813 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Minimise Current Target   

The total recorded number of ASB incidents during October, November and December is 

higher when compared to the same period over the previous two years. 
 
Worcester City Council has worked with partners to respond to reported instances of ASB.  

11% of reports are youth related.  Youth intervention work has increased since November 
with the recruitment of 2 additional full time officers, ensuring young adults are safeguarded 

during the Covid19 pandemic; providing mentoring and interventions to help our younger 
generation make better decisions.  Officers are supporting and reassuring residents who 
report localised issues and are working with partner organisations to support vulnerable 

individuals. 

Page 30



11 

 

Active participation at leisure centres 

Description: Active participation at Perdiswell, St. Johns, Nunnery Wood leisure centres 

(and Worcester Pool previously)  

 

RAG  Current Value 142,926 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 142,601 

The leisure centre contract over achieved on the Q3 active participation target by 325 visits. 

The learn to swim programme continued to grow with a net gain of 109 new members during 
Q3, and at the end of Q3 2,351 children and adults were taking part in weekly swimming 
lessons. There was also great success with the October half term activities across all centres 

which included holiday clubs, crash course swimming lessons, and family swimming with the 
introduction of a new swimming pool inflatable at PLC. 

Page 31



12 

 

Number of sport and play activities participants 

Description: Number of participants engaged in sport and play activities  

 

RAG  Current Value 2,091 Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 1,528 

Active Communities Worcester finished Q3 563 over target. Q3 saw Freedom Leisure 
continue with many of their regular weekly active ageing, active health, inclusive sport and 

youth sessions. They also ran their free half term multi sports programme in October Half 
term and despite some adverse weather conditions were able to engage over 100 children 
throughout the programme. School sport recommenced in September with 4 days a week 

across 2 schools. October also saw the beginning of monthly adapted Pilates and strength 
sessions which have proved to be popular with attendees. 
 

Number of affordable housing completions 

Description: The number of new units of affordable housing completed. This includes both 
new build units and units purchased off the open market by housing providers 

for the provision of affordable housing. 

 

RAG  Current Value 109 Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Page 32



13 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 100 

At the end of the 2020-21 financial year, 109 new affordable housing units have been 
developed by RP partners in the City. This is much lower than the forecasted delivery of 188 

units because of the successive Covid 19 lockdowns, which for some time closed construction 
sites, and then supply chain and staffing issues have caused developers delay in delivering 

sites many of which have moved into the next financial year, Our annual target of 100 units 
has been met.   

 
 

Homelessness Resolution (Preventions and Relief) 

Description: The number of people who presented as homelessness or threatened with 

homelessness and to whom we owed a duty against the number of 
presentations that are prevented or relieved of homelessness. 

 

RAG  Current Value 133 Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

Page 33



14 

 

Percentage of HMO’s licensed 

Description: The total number of HMOs licensed as a percentage of the total number of 

suspected HMOs in the city. 

 

RAG  Current Value 65.8% Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 75% 

Officers are still working through licensing the additional licensing scheme HMOs and have 

pushed back pro-active work and licensed HMO inspections to help manage demand. There is 
the need to recover from this backlog due to the hump of additional licensing and pro-
actively target unlicensed HMOs more than we have been able to over the past year.  

Additional staff resources are being sought to accomplish this and ensure landlords know the 
council is active in tackling unlicensed properties and ensuring standards in all HMOs. 

 

Page 34



15 

 

Category 1 Hazard Removal 

Description: Number of private sector dwellings where Category 1 hazards are removed 

through Council intervention. 
Hazards are identified following a HHSRS inspection of the property: category 
1 hazards are a serious and immediate risk to a person's health and safety; 

category 2 hazards are less serious or less urgent. Local Authorities have a 
duty to remove all Category 1 hazards from the property and have a power to 

remove Category 2 hazards. 
intervention 

 

RAG  Current Value 4 Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 2 

Activity of inspections picked up during the quarter due to reduced covid impacts although 
with tighter restrictions back in place the team have reduced pro-active visits again and are 
concentrating on advice work and HMO licensing activity.  

Page 35



16 

 

Category 2 Hazard Removal 

Description: Number of private sector dwellings where Category 2 hazards are removed 

through Council intervention. 
Hazards are identified following a HHSRS inspection of the property: category 
1 hazards are a serious and immediate risk to a person's health and safety; 

category 2 hazards are less serious or less urgent. Local Authorities have a 
duty to remove all Category 1 hazards from the property and have a power to 

remove Category 2 hazards. 

 

RAG  Current Value 3 Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 1 

Activity of inspections picked up during the quarter due to reduced covid impacts although 

with tighter restrictions back in place the team have reduced pro-active visits again and are 
concentrating on advice work and HMO licensing activity.  

Page 36



17 

 

Percentage of households owed a duty whose homelessness was prevented 

Description: The percentage of households where a homeless duty is owed and the case 

was successfully prevented from homelessness i.e. are sustained in present 
accommodation by negotiating with a landlord to keep a household in their 
present accommodation, providing a rent deposit. 

 

RAG  Current Value 58% Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

The percentage of households that approached the Council and were owed a duty whose 
homelessness was prevented in quarter 2 was 58% which is a similar percentage to quarter 

2.  Out of 69 cases 40 were prevented from becoming homeless. 

Page 37



18 

 

Percentage of households not owed a duty whose homelessness was prevented 

Description: The percentage of households where a homeless duty is not owed and the 

case was successfully prevented from homelessness 

 

RAG  Current Value 31.3% Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

This quarter shows a small decrease in the number of households who were not owed a duty 

whose homelessness was prevented.  This percentage equates to 35 out of 112 households. 

Page 38



19 

 

Percentage of households owed a duty whose homelessness was relieved 

Description: When households are either already homeless when they approach the council 

or the LA cannot prevent their homelessness the Council has a 56 day duty to 
help relieve their homelessness. This is the percentage of households who are 
assisted by the Council to find alternative accommodation within this period 

LHAs are required to take reasonable steps for 56 days to help to relieve 
homelessness by helping the applicant to secure suitable accommodation. The 

reasonable steps would be similar to those provided at prevention stage, for 
example provision of a rent deposit for new accommodation or help with 
family mediation. 

 

RAG  Current Value 54.4% Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

The percentage of homeless household owed a duty whose homelessness was relieved was 
54.4%, almost exactly the same as the last quarter. This equates to 93 out of 171. 

Page 39



20 

 

Number of preventions and reliefs by funded partner agencies (CAB & CCP) 

Description: Outcomes achieved by grant funded Agencies supporting the Council to 

prevent and relieve homelessness 

 

RAG  Current Value 22 Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

Of these, 18 have been competed by CAB and 3 by CCP. 
 

Number of households placed in Temporary Accommodation during the Qtr 

Description: The number of households placed into emergency/temporary homeless 
accommodation during the quarter. Households will remain in this 

accommodation for up to 56 days. 

 

RAG  Current Value 48 Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Aim to Minimise Current Target   

This is a new PI and so far this figure has been similar over the 3 quarters. 
 
  

Page 40



 
 

Report to: Communities Committee, 26th January 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director for Operations, Homes and Communities 
 

 
Subject: COMPLETION REPORT ON THE THRIVING EU MIGRANTS COMMUNITY 

AND CITY PROJECT (BREXIT) 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
That the Committee note the contents of the report and in particular the 

direct and indirect outcomes delivered through the project. 
 

2. Background 
 
2.1 In June 2020 the Policy and Resources Committee approved the use of £45,660 of 

Brexit Grant Funding awarded to the Council for an additional post within the 
Community Services Team for a fixed term of 12 months to provide community 

support to local citizens affected by Brexit. 

2.2 On Committee approval a recruitment process was carried out and the officer 
commenced the role from 3rd August 2020. 

2.3 The project focused on 6 key areas of engagement: 
a) EU Settlement Scheme support 

b) Providing migrant communities with access to services 
c) Providing housing and homelessness support, 
d) Facilitating community development, 

e) Ensuring community safety 
f) Improving health and well-being. 

2.4 The anticipated benefits to the city from the project were: 
a) To prepare 2000-3000 migrants for day-to-day challenges. 
b) Improve efficiency and capacity of local services as this targeted work will enable 

more migrants to become self-sufficient and self-reliant. 
c) Improve community safety as people are more understanding towards one 

another and are less fearful of ‘others’. 
d) To communicate with the 5,000 migrants who secured their EU Settlement or 

Pre-settlement status and ensure they are aware of their new immigration status 

and feel safer for having their rights to reside secured. 
e) Greater integration across the communities through community events and 

campaigns to raise (cultural) awareness and understanding of both migrants and 
local communities, bringing them closer together by identifying shared heritage 
and aspirations. 

f) To unlock entrepreneurial potential of migrants (individuals, community 
groups/organisations, migrant-led businesses, etc.) and showcase their positive 

contributions across the city. 

 

Page 41 Agenda Item 7



3. Information  
 

3.1 The project used the following methods to deliver on the 6 key areas: 

a) Face-to-face engagements and casework with the migrant clients.  Looking to 
support eligible non-UK nationals through the EU Settlement Scheme application 

process as well as in addressing other areas of need. 
b) Promotion of the EU Settlement Scheme and migrant rights. 

c) Provision of training sessions and workshops for frontline colleagues to develop 
knowledge and skills and improve the quality of support for non-UK clients. 

d) Stakeholder engagement to raise awareness of the various communities living in 

Worcester and to support community events. 
e) Identify training and volunteering opportunities increase individual and 

community resilience. 

3.2 Despite the Covid-19 pandemic and several lockdowns taking place throughout the 

project lifetime, the project officer was able to deliver a high volume of case work, as 
illustrated below, with increasing complexity as the project went on. 

 
3.3 Due to the high demand, casework constituted the key element of the project, and 

as such, also became the central part of the community engagement role.  The 
officer was able to support frontline officers in understanding the issues affecting 
migrant communities and identify what was preventing many non-UK nationals from 

accessing help.  The officer supported regular drop-in sessions for residents 
throughout the project lifetime even during the pandemic. 

3.4 A promotional campaign focused on the EU Settlement Scheme and support available 
to migrant communities was delivered throughout the council using banners on all 
council emails, paid promotion on social media as well as information provided for 

groups and organisations working within local migrant communities.  A dedicated 
webinar was delivered in February 2021 and attended by 23 organisations.  Articles 

appeared in CityLife magazine, private rented tenants’ newsletter and Platform 
Housing newsletter. 

3.5 Workshops were delivered to Housing Officers at Worcester City Council, volunteers 
of the CAB offices in Worcester and Hereford as well as the key managers at Rooftop 
Housing (covering Worcester, Wychavon District and Gloucester). 

3.6 The officer engaged with 50 different partner agencies operating in Worcester City or 
regionally including Maggs Day Centre, CCP, Yellow Scarf, Platform Housing Group, 

Rooftop, LikeU, CAB and CAB WHABAC. 

3.7 The partnership approach helped identified shortages within the general migrant 
support available in Worcester at the time and the volume and diversity of cases 

brought by the clients.  In looking for a sustainable model to support migrants 
beyond the life of the project, partner agencies formed the Migrant Support Centre. 

Page 42



3.8 The LikeU charity, CAB and the project officer identified and trained a cohort of 10 
multi-lingual volunteers from 5 countries (Poland, Romania, Bulgaria, Ukraine and 

Portugal) to support residents struggling with the language barrier and/or unable to 
navigate access to services.  3 of the volunteers went on to complete Citizens Advice 
Training.  The Migrant Support Centre also adopted and hosted the online content 

identified in the project brief.  2 volunteers have subsequently become employed 
with one training to be an Immigration Advisor, the only one registered with the 

Home Office within the county. 

3.9 The LikeU charity has also delivered on the aims of the employment and 
entrepreneurial aspirations of the project.  Advisors help clients in accessing the job 

centre when language is a barrier and support clients to register preferred 
employment agencies.  The LikeU centre has 3 subsidised rentable rooms for start-

up businesses to use whilst they become established. 

4. Lessons Learnt and Legacy 

4.1 Due to varying COVID-19 restrictions in place during the project it was impractical to 
be able to deliver community consultation, engagement and employment elements 
to the scale originally aspired.  However, the relationships built and developed during 

this project have enabled high quality engagement with communities in delivering 
the outreach vaccination programme which Worcester City Council and Worcester 

Community Trust have been at the heart of. 

4.2 The council and those residents who the project focussed on have significantly 
benefitted from providing targeted, specialist advice and support for migrant 

residents during EU settlements status programme and COVID-19 pandemic.  Strong 
relationships have been established with a variety of communities as a result of this 

investment in our residents and will develop in time through ongoing community 
development projects. 

4.3 The Migrant Support Centre continues to establish itself in the community, as a 

centre for communal activities, Corner Café – European restaurant, trusted advice, 
translation support, socialising and friendship.  There are currently 2 businesses 

renting rooms from the centre.  With National Lottery and Worcestershire 
Community Foundation funding they have employed 3 of the volunteers on 
temporary contracts, supporting more than 400 clients over the last 3 months with 

more diverse and complex needs such as refuge from domestic violence, financial 
hardship, modern slavery, fraud and exploitation. 

 
 
Ward(s):   All Wards 

Contact Officer: Warwick Neale. Tel: 01905 752971; email: 
Warwick.neale@worceser.gov.uk 

Background Papers: Policy and Resources Committee, 9th June 2020: 
BREXIT PROJECT: THRIVING EU MIGRANTS COMMUNITY 
AND CITY 

 
Appendix 1: Thriving migrants, communities and city (2020-2021) - End of project 

report 

 
  

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Thriving migrants, communities and city 

(2020-2021) 

 

 
 

End of project report 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

By:  

 

 

Basia Ligas 

Community Cohesion Officer  

Worcester City Council 
 

 

Page 45 Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



2 
 

Table of Contents 

 
 

Glossary …………………………………………………………………………………………. 3 
 

 
Executive Summary …………………………………………………………………………. 4 
 

 
1. Project Background ……………………………………………………………………… 5 

 
2. Aspiration …………………………………………………………………………………… 6 

 
3. Methodology ……………………………………………………………………………….. 7 
 

4. Project Outcomes ……………………………………………………………………….. 11 
 

4.1. EU Settlement Scheme Support  …………………………………... 11 
 

4.2. Targeted Case Work and Support ………………………………… 13 

 
4.3. Access to Services ………………………………………………………. 17  

  
4.4. Housing and Homelessness Support ……………………………… 18 

 

4.5. Community Development …………………………………………….. 21 
 

4.6. Community Safety, Health and Well-being …………………….. 23 
  

5. Lessons learnt and recommendations …………………………………………… 25 

 
5. Appendix 1. ……………………………………………………………………………….. 29 

 
 

Cases studies 
 

 
EU Settlement Scheme Delays ……………………………………………………….… 13 

Windrush Scheme ……………………………………………………….……………….… 16 

Migrants and Housing Issues …………………………………………………………... 18 

Homeless Support ……………………………………………………………………….…. 19 

Homeless EU Family in Need ……………………………………………………………. 20 

Benefits Support for Migrants ………………………………………………………….. 24 

EUSS Support for Vulnerable Individuals …………………………………………... 26 

Page 46



3 
 

Glossary  
 
 

ACRO    Criminal Records Office 

Deadline   EU Settlement Scheme deadline of 30th June 2021 

DWP   Department of Work and Pension 

EEA    European Economic Area 

EUSS    EU Settlement Scheme  

GLAA    Gangsters and Labour Abuse Authority 

MDS    Modern Day Slavery 

MSC or Centre  Migrant Support Centre 

UC    Universal Credit 

VOW    Voluntary Organisations in Worcester  

WIN    Worcester Inclusion Network 

 
 

 

Page 47



4 
 

Executive Summary 

 
 

The following report represents the end of project summary highlighting the activities 
undertaken as part of the ‘Thriving migrants, communities and city’ project. The 

initiative was carried out by Worcester City Council’s Community Engagement Team 
and was possible thanks to the successful allocation of HM Government’s funds 
dedicated to Brexit preparedness.   

 

The project implemented between Aug 2020 and Aug 2021, envisioned assisting with 
the EU Settlement Scheme and Brexit transition within Worcester, supporting 

members of migrant communities get established. As such, the initiative aimed to 
ensure that migrants are supported by effective and tailor-made measures put in 

place by Worcester City Council, focused on developing the ‘voice’ of migrant 
communities. 
 

To achieve the effective implementation of the initiative, a dedicated Community 
Engagement Officer was appointed to carry out the project activities and to promote 

community cohesion. These focused on the six areas of engagement identified right at 
the start, including: 
 

 EU Settlement Scheme support  

 Providing migrant communities with access to services 

 Providing housing and homelessness support, 

 Facilitating community development, 

 Ensuring community safety  

 Improving health and well-being 

 
Despite the Covid-19 pandemic and several lockdowns taking place throughout the 
project lifetime, the initiative resulted in a number of outstanding achievements 

highlighted in the report. These included: 
 

 Regular appointments for the migrant clients being introduced and taking 
place between Sept 20 and Aug 21 

 355 face-to-face meetings being carried out by the officer in post, and 

addressing 548 separate cases  
 Migrant issues being brought to the public discourse by setting up a Migration 

Forum, running migrant-focused information and training sessions for services 
operating across the city, or conducting regular online information and 
awareness-raising campaign (mainly around the EU Settlement Scheme) 

 
By far the most significant achievement of the project was that of setting up the 

Migrant Support Centre right in the heart of Worcester. This migrant-focused service, 
created in collaboration with Like U charity, continues to act as a legacy of the project, 
assisting both EU and non-EU nationals in addressing any issues of concern.   

 
 

 

Page 48



5 
 

1. Project background  

 
 
The idea for the project was developed in 2019 when Basia Ligas, a Community 

Engagement Officer, was working on a county-wide Controlling Migration Fund Project. 
While exploring the issues affecting migrant communities within housing, it became 

clear that assistance would soon be required in addressing challenges brought about 
by the Brexit vote taken in 2016.   

 
The decision for the UK to leave the EU Structures has resulted in tensions and 
disruptions on both political and societal level. Since the vote, the uncertainty 

surrounding Brexit became one of major sources of concern for the EU/EEA nationals 
and their family members, including those living and working in Worcester.  

  
While the EU/EEA nationals continue to be welcome in the country, their further stay 
depends on holding a relevant immigration status. In practical terms, based on the 

Withdrawal Agreement and the guidance of the UK government, all EU/EEA and Swiss 
nationals as well as their family members who resided in the UK by 31st December 

2020 are obliged to hold a relevant EU Settlement Scheme status (settled or pre-
settled). This applies to any of the above-mentioned nationals who relocated to the 
UK since 1973 when the country joined the EU, even if they previously held a 

permanent residence card. The Scheme is also open to those who arrived earlier yet 
have had no other documents confirming their status.   

 
Already in her previous role, the officer in post had identified that while the 
application process seemed easy, it was far too challenging for a number of eligible 

applicants. Whether this was the language barrier, lack of IT skills or no access to 
relevant technology (the applications were primarily submitted via the EUexit app), 

assistance was required to ensure that those eligible are supported in making valid 
applications and subsequently have their stay in the UK regulated. Likewise, the CMF 
project made it clear that very little support is available to non-UK nationals in 

general. There was an opportunity here, therefore, to fill in the void by providing a 
tailor-made service focused on the immigration advice as well as addressing a host of 

other issues that migrants tend to face on the daily basis. 
 
At the time when concerns over the EU Settlement Scheme application process and 

lack of support services for migrants were being discussed, national non-ringfenced 
funding was awarded to Worcester City Council from HM Government. The money was 

allocated specifically to support Brexit preparedness. This was an ideal opportunity to 
introduce a service assisting in the Scheme and ensuring wider and more general 
migrant support.   

 
 

 

Page 49



6 
 

2. ASPIRATION 
 

Following the identification of the relevant funds, a proposal for the ‘Thriving migrants, 

communities and city’ project was put together by the Community Engagement Team. 
The initiative looked at supporting migrant communities to settle or work in Worcester, 

identifying their strengths, as well as developing and supporting local organisations 
and services to address migrant needs. It also recognised the social, economic and 
environmental benefits to the City through its investment in its migrant population 

and developing the ‘voice’ of migrant communities. 
 

With the funding awarded to the project, a fixed term full time Community 
Engagement Officer, Basia Ligas, was appointed for one year to ensure that migrants 

were able to access services as well as to promote community cohesion. The role 
itself was focused on addressing the following project objectives: 

 Support members of migrant communities in securing their right to remain and 

thrive in the UK through facilitating the EU Settlement Scheme support. 

 In the event of Brexit taking place > support the transition into the new 

immigration rules related to the EU migrants in the UK 

 Help eliminate the negative impact of the current political situation on the 

well-being, mental health and safety of migrants. 

 Work with migrant and local communities to develop positive relations and 

encourage greater understanding and community cohesion. 

 Work with organisations and charities to improve the services offered.  

Providing training and signposting so that employees understand how best to 

support migrants. 

 Provide a link between the migrant communities and local services (housing, 

homelessness prevention, health and well-being etc.) to ensure that these 

remain relevant to the communities of interest and effectively respond to their 

needs. 

 Promote active citizenship through encouraging participation and volunteering 

across migrant communities, supporting the growth of voluntary and 

community sector organisation’s (particularly those of migrant origin). 

 Promote the values of equality, diversity, inclusiveness and empathy with the 

view to reducing local tensions and promoting positive stories of achievement 

and success.  

Overall, despite the short-term nature of the project, the ultimate ambition was to 

both address the issues at hand (mainly those related to the EU Settlement Scheme 

deadline) and help remove the barriers that previously prevented our migrant 

communities from accessing support. Likewise, by producing specific resources (e.g. 

EU Settlement Scheme info graphics) and developing the capacity of the frontline 

staff (including customer services), we wished to create a more sustainable way of 

looking after our migrant population. 

Page 50



7 
 

3. METHODOLOGY  
 
 

To ensure that the project met the objectives of the funding stream and responded to 
the current strategies within the city1, six key areas of engagement were identified 

with the view to support migrant communities in Worcester: 
 

 EU Settlement Scheme support  

 Providing migrant communities with access to services 

 Providing housing and homelessness support, 

 Facilitating community development, 

 Ensuring community safety  

 Improving health and well-being 

 

The above areas provided the structure to the project and formed the backbone of its 
methodology focused on a mixture of: 
 

 Face-to-face engagements and casework with the migrant clients looking 
at supporting the eligible non-UK nationals in the EU Settlement Scheme 

application process as well as in addressing other areas of interest 
 

 Awareness-raising activities concerning the EU Settlement Scheme and 

migrant rights 
 

 Training sessions and workshops focused on developing knowledge and 
skills of colleagues working across the different services and looking at 
providing better and quality support for non-UK clients. 

 
 Community development activities centred around migrant-focused 

conversations, community events, and human capital development 
through employment and volunteering.  

 

Among the above, casework constituted the key element of the project, and as such, 
became the central part of the community engagement role. Equipped with better 

understanding of the issues affecting migrant communities and preventing many of 
the non-UK nationals from accessing help, it was agreed that regular drop-in sessions 
are to take place throughout the project lifetime. Also, given the EU Settlement 

Scheme deadline in June 2021 and seriousness of the matter, the sessions were 
clustered as part of the essential service. As a result, a green light was given for 

these to take place during the pandemic and where the successive lockdown 
restrictions would allow for the meetings. 
 

                                                                 

1 Worcester City’s Homes and Communities Service, City Plan (with particular focus on: stronger and 

connected communities, healthy and active city, and a prosperous city) as well as the Community 

Engagement Strategy.   

Page 51



8 
 

Consequently, in September 2020 a room for weekly meetings was allocated to the 
Community Engagement Officer at the Guildhall. Once the restrictions eased and 

offices started to reopen, the appointments were moved to the Trinity Street Housing 
Advice Centre. This allowed for the officer to see more clients and more frequently 

(twice a week) as well as to be available to colleagues in the housing and customer 
services teams where support with non-UK nationals was highly desirable.  
 

Given the shortage of services working with migrant communities in Worcester, 
already over the first few months of the project, the volume of casework exceeded all 

expectations. Wishing, therefore, to still fulfil our aspirations, the team involved in the 
project implementation explored alternative opportunities to deliver on the aim, while 
ensuring a more sustainable project legacy going forward.  

 
This pressing situation and the need for more human resources to be involved in the 

service, gave rise to an idea of setting up a Migrant Support Centre (MSC) in 
Worcester to: 
 

 Ensure that the existing gap in access to services for non-UK nationals is 
made smaller and continues to narrow down with the project growth  

 Facilitate positive communication and cooperation between Worcester City 
Council, other local services providers and migrant communities residing in 

the city 
 Ensure that the migrant voice is heard and included in the future planning and 

shaping of services across the city 

 Set a positive example for the neighbouring local authorities, both in 
Worcestershire and across the region.  

 
Following the initial conversations within the team, Like U charity, a new Eastern-
European organisation focused on migrant support, was identified as the most 

suitable host for the Centre. The organisation has access to a big communal space 
and had already started doing some work with migrant communities at 2 Westbury 

Street when the possible partnership idea emerged. Subsequently, a grant of £10 800 
was agreed on for a 6-month pilot project looking at: 
  

 Recruiting and training a cohort of min. 10 multilingual volunteers within 
areas such as:  

 EU Settlement Scheme - basic advice and support in applying to the 
Scheme 

 Housing and homelessness assistance 

 Access to benefits and other forms of financial assistance (e.g. 
Hardship Funds, discretionary funds of the Local Authorities, individual 

grants, etc.) 
 Understanding and managing utility bills  
 Access to work and employment support  

 Any other topics deemed relevant to migrant communities and 
supporting non-UK nationals in thriving within the local communities.  

 Providing a specialised and tailor-made Citizens Advice Training to a group of 
min. 3 attendees 

 Providing min. 20 hours of voluntary support per week covering (yet not 

limited to) the areas specified above  
 Providing linguistic support (excluding interpreting services) to clients who 

struggle to manage their daily affairs due to the language barrier 

Page 52



9 
 

 Assisting at least 200 beneficiaries within the 6 months period. 
 Creating a website signposting non-UK national to relevant content as well as 

the activities delivered by the volunteers and LikeU at the Migrant Centre. 
Online presence was seen here as the key to assisting the existing migrants 

and welcoming the new arrivals and visitors to the city. 
 Creating a final report describing the needs of migrants and highlighting the 

possible improvements or changes within the existing services. 

 
 

Setting up the MSC turned out to be a beneficial move as it enabled the officer in post 
to continue seeing clients, though fewer, while at the same time implementing other 
elements of the project methodology.  

 
Initially, we planned for the project and its outcomes to be informed by the results of 

a survey conducted both with the migrant communities and services provided across 
the city. The aim here was twofold: 
 

1. Find out what issues are currently affecting migrants and how the respondents 
themselves would see these being addressed. 

 
2. Explore services currently available to migrants in the city, how accessible they 

are and how to fill in the possible gaps. 
 
Unfortunately, due to the global pandemic and subsequent lockdowns, it was 

impossible for us to undertake any formal consultation with the migrants themselves. 
Given the difficulties in gathering new data, we have, therefore, turned our attention 

to the survey and the activities undertaken as part of the county-wide Controlling 
Migration Fund project implemented in 2018-2020. Since the results of the survey 
conducted then were still relatively recent and had already highlighted the main 

issues that migrants struggled with, these were used to direct the work of the project, 
the Migrant Support Centre, as well as to develop the awareness-raising campaign 

further.  
 
As such, these activities were conducted mainly online via regular updates on the 

relevant social media platforms. They were also complemented with various articles 
and other resources (e.g. EU Settlement Scheme Infographics) designed specifically 

to assist the migrant clients and to provide information to the front-line services.     

With regards to human capacity building, the project focused on conducting series of 
workshops and training sessions aimed at those working within housing needs team, 

homelessness support, housing associations, NHS, charities, and other support 
services (e.g. CAB). The activities undertaken here looked at helping the services 

improve accessibility and increase staff knowledge of support mechanisms available 
for the migrant clients within Worcester. As envisaged at the planning stage, 
equipped with new skills and understanding of migrant issues, we wished for the 

colleagues working across the city to be more readily available to help non-UK 
nationals long after the project has come to an end.  

Finally, when it comes to the community development aspect of the project, this 
turned out to be by far the most challenging element of the methodology to address. 
Similarly to what has been mentioned before, both the pandemic and the subsequent 

Page 53



10 
 

lockdowns hampered any attempts of facilitating large-scale face-to-face engagement 
with the public.  

 
Not deterred by the global situation, though, the officer in post made all possible 

efforts for the activities planned at the application stage to take place. These took 
form of: 

 conversations focused on working with non-UK nationals and conducted as part 

of the Migrant Forum  
 updates for fellow community groups and organisations carried out during the 

Community Services webinars, and 
 community events implemented within the Talk to Me Worcester campaign 

(especially in the second part of the project), and  

 further capacity building achieved through working with volunteers at the MSC.   
 

The only aspect of the project methodology and community development efforts 
which we found almost impossible to address was that of building cohesion through 
employment. The initial ambition was to support members of the migrant 

communities in undertaking relevant employment-related training or helping those 
interested in setting up entrepreneurial ventures. Again, due to the pandemic and the 

way it affected all aspects of our lives (including the work of organisations and 
companies), the scope of developing any employment-related activities remained 

beyond our capabilities.  
 
 

 
 

Page 54



11 
 

4. Project outcomes 
 

 

‘Thriving migrants, communities and city’ was a unique project conducted at the 
highly challenging time. Despite all the adversities, though, the team managed to 

produce some impressive results which have been outlined below. To fully understand 
and appreciate the diversity of the tasks undertaken, these have been split into six 
thematic sections reflecting the different fields of engagement mentioned beforehand.  

 
 

 

4.1. EU Settlement Scheme Support  
 
 

Being a central element of the project, the EU Settlement Scheme support focused on 
two distinct areas of engagement: conducting an awareness-raising campaign and 

providing targeted support via case work.  
 
Right from the start, the awareness-raising efforts concentrated on ensuring that: 

 Representatives of the local migrant communities eligible to apply are 
aware of the Scheme and engage actively in the process 

 Colleagues working across the key support services are aware of the 
Scheme and are able to support their clients in either completing the 
relevant applications or signposting to other bodies e.g. our community 

engagement officer.  

To achieve the above, we started off with introducing regular media updates 

(including both information and videos) on the Scheme. These were prepared by the 
officer in post and published on social media, utilising the Community Engagement 
Facebook page, as well as pages and websites of fellow support organisations e.g. 

Like U, European Connections Forum, Yellow Scarf, etc. The information was also 
shared via Facebook groups utilised by the specific migrant groups e.g. Poles, Italians 

or Romanians in Worcester etc.  

Initially, the posts focused on promoting the EU Settlement Scheme support that was 
being developed as part of the project. To ensure greater visibility of the service, a 

special pull-up banner was created and placed at the Trinity Street Housing Advice 
Centre. Its aim was to inform the clients visiting the venue of the EUSS assistance 

being offered there every Wednesday.  

Apart from the banner, a number of EUSS posters have also been created and 
distributed across the city, signposting the potential clients to the Community 

Engagement Officer. Thanks to the support of the project volunteers, the posters 
were translated into Polish, Romanian, Portuguese and Bulgarian, ensuring the 

information reach across the biggest migrant communities in Worcester.   

Over time, as the project started to develop, and the 30th June 2021 EU Settlement 
Scheme deadline was coming to an end, our awareness-raising efforts intensified. 

Two articles on EUSS and related topics published in the City Life magazine and 
Tenants and Landlords Newsletter helped to reach a wider audience. Halfway through 

Page 55



12 
 

the project also, the expertise of our engagement officer was recognised by the Polish 
Expats Association in Birmingham, inviting Basia Ligas to participate in and contribute 

to two live EUSS webinars and Q&A sessions for the Polish nationals living in the 
wider West Midlands area.  

 
Similarly, the EUSS updates were shared on the Community Engagement dedicated 
webinar conducted on 26th February 2021 and Migration Forum meetings organised as 

part of the project. More information about the latter ones will be provided in the later 
sections of the report.  

When it comes to awareness-raising across the key services, dedicated EUSS 
presentations, workshops and training sessions were conducted for a number of local 
and regional partners. These included: Housing Officers at Worcester City Council, 

CAB volunteers at the offices in Worcester and Hereford, City Council Customer 
Services team, key managers at Rooftop Housing (covering Worcester, Wychavon 

District and Gloucester), homeless organisations and services (Caring for 
Communities and People, Street Kitchen, Maggs Day Centre), or attendees of the 
Healthy Worcester Forum.  

Following these, the officer in post continued to conduct regular communication and 
advice for partner agencies operating in Worcester City or across wider West Midlands 

region. Throughout the project, Basia has made 
contact and utilised the support of over 50 different 

organisations, including: Maggs Day Centre, CCP, 
Yellow Scarf, Platform Housing Group, Rooftop, LikeU, 
CAB and CAB WHABAC, Worcestershire County Council 

Social Services, NHS services and GP practices. 
 

Finally, case work itself presented ample opportunities 
for continuous information sharing. In the first part of 
the project, awareness-raising activities focused on 

promoting the Scheme and ensuring that those eligible 
to apply do so in time. From January 2021, additional 

work has been undertaken in the areas of: proving the 
status (how to generate share codes), applying 
without valid identification documents, or ensuring that 

parents applied for their children.   

Though time consuming and slow-spreading, the 

above efforts have proven highly beneficial over time. 
Thanks to the social media posts, referrals by partner 
agencies or simply word of mouth, more and more 

clients started to reach out for the EUSS assistance. 
These are represented by high numbers of those 

contacting our engagement officer either for direct 
help in the application process or simply enquiring 
about the EUSS in general.  

 
Image 1. Sample of the EUSS info-graphic

Page 56



13 
 

To ensure that many of the same queries could be dealt with in a more efficient 
manner, special resources were created or amended (where such resources existed 

before).  
 

These were EUSS-related info-graphics; one on how to prove the status and one 
on how to amend the details. These were available in English and Polish and were 
being distributed both among the clients and colleagues in other support services. The 

updated info-graphics have now also been translated into Portuguese, and Romanian. 
 

 
CASE STUDY: EU Settlement Scheme Delays 

 

Delays to the EU Settlement Scheme application process were and still remain quite 

frequent. One unfortunate individual who experienced that was a homeless EU national 

who despite submitting the application in January 2020 had no further response from 

the Home Office by September the same year. As a result, he found himself in a limbo 

with no entitlement to benefits or homelessness and housing assistance.  

 

Since our officer was involved in the case from the start (Basia helped with the 

application submission when still in her previous role), it was easier to understand 

where the process was, though it was confusing why it was taking so long. It was 

established that the individual had no criminal history of offending and his application 

should not have taken more than 6 months to be processed.  

 

Throughout the summer and autumn 2020 regular calls to the Home Office were being 

made, yet the typical advise of awaiting for the case worker to process the form was 

always given. As the circumstances of the individual were deteriorating, the gentleman 

agreed for his case to be flagged up to the local MP.  Unfortunately, despite Mr Robin 

Walker’s office being involved, there still seemed to be no resolution to the case. The 

engagement officer, therefore, remained alert and continued the calls to the Home 

Office EU Settlement Scheme Resolution Centre. 

 

Unexpectedly, during yet another meeting with the client, the officer was asked to 

help out with a strangely sounding message from the Salvation Army. It turned out 

that the individual was being contacted in relation to him being previously found a 

victim of Modern Day Slavery (MDS).  

 

While the message was dealt with separately, the officer contacted the Home Office 

again and shared the news regarding the individual being protected as part of the MDS 

National Referral Mechanism. Soon after the gentleman received the decision on his 

EUSS application. Though the cause of the delay had not been revealed, it is likely that 

the MDS process was holding everything up.   

 
 

4.2. Targeted case work and support 
 
From the very first months, casework became a major focus of the dedicated 

community engagement role. From September 2020 until the end of the project in 
August 2021, the officer in post held regular meetings with the migrant clients 

seeking the EUSS Support. These were initially conducted from the Guildhall, but 
were later moved to the Trinity Street Housing Advice Centre when the office 
reopened after the lockdown. 

 
Since launching the drop-in service in September 2020, Basia Ligas held over 300 

Page 57



14 
 

face-to-face EUSS-related engagements with representatives of 27 different 
nationalities (both EU and non-EU). This was followed up further by hundreds 

engagements conducted over the phone or via e-mail.  
 

 
 

Image 2. Casework in numbers 
 

 
The numbers of cases to address kept on increasing steadily throughout the project 
lifetime. This was reflective of the information about the service spreading gradually 

and the clients becoming more and more aware of the need to apply to the Scheme. 
Also, as expected, the busiest times were in the months directly proceeding the 30th 

June EUSS deadline, with the highest numbers of clients seeking assistance recorded 
in April, May and June 2021.  
 

The graphs below represent the steadily increasing nature of the casework. Initially, 
the officer recorded the numbers of meetings and individuals only. At the later stages 

of the project, though, a record of separate cases was also added to document the 
diversity of queries being addressed. 
 

 
 

Graph 1. Cases addressed from Sept 2020 until Jan 2021 
 

 
 

Page 58



15 
 

 
 

Graph 2. Cases addressed from Feb 2021 until Aug 2021 
 
 

Separately, additional 196 queries and EUSS-related cases were addressed by the 
Migrant Support Centre since the service launch in February 2021.  

 
An array of queries and cases brought to the appointments was vast and already on 
its own justified the need for the project. These included:   

 
 Support in applying to the EU Settlement Scheme using the EUexit phone 

application - A number of clients struggled with the process as their devices were 
either not compatible with the Home Office app, individuals lacked the language 
skills necessary to understand the process and to complete the application 

correctly or were simply scared to do so on their own.  
 

 Assistance in requesting paper applications from the Home Office and supporting 
clients in completing those - paper forms were initially introduced by the Home 

Office to enable the submission of the EUSS applications by non-EU/EEA eligible 
clients. Over time and closer to the deadline, though, these were also extended 
over to applicants without valid IDs, including new-born babies who were not 

eligible to obtain the British citizenship at birth.    
 

 Regular calls to the Home Office EU Settlement Scheme Resolution Centre - these 
were being made either as requests for advice or following communication 
between the Home Office and the clients. The number of such calls increased 

significantly towards the end of the project as more and more applicants found it 
impossible to connect trough to the EUSS case workers. Luckily, in spring 2021 

the Home Office opened a special line for the support organisations (such as our 
service) and the engagement officer was able to help progress a number of 
outstanding cases.  

 
 Assisting clients in gathering relevant evidence to support their EUSS applications 

- typically where request for evidence was made, the client had to provide enough 
documentation to cover minimum 6 months out of each 5 years (settled status) or 
any evidence covering June-December 2020 (pre-settled status) to demonstrated 

Page 59



16 
 

that the UK is now their permanent home. Subsequently, this activity additionally 
involved: contacting GP practices, schools, employment agencies or direct 

employers, HMRC, as well as other support services e.g. probation, homeless 
charities etc. This was with the view to obtain enough evidence to support the 

clients’ applications.  
 

 Assisting in the EUSS cases of clients with previous criminal convictions - the 

typical tasks here involved contacting relevant police forces (including those out 
of area), liaising with ACRO criminal Records Office where the clients’ records 

needed updating/correcting, contacting relevant fine-issuing bodies e.g. British 
Transport Police or British Railway to ensure that the case has been completed 
and the Home Office can progress with the EUSS application. In one particular 

case, the work involved signposting the client to the local police stations where 
the individual was found ‘wanted’ by the force. This led to the immediate court 

hearing and the case being brought to a close by a relevant fine being issued. The 
Home Office was then updated and is now assessing the EUSS application again.       
 

Further examples of the work carried out as part of casework can be found in 
Appendix 1.  

 
Overall, the EUSS casework was a great eye opener and provided a better insight into 

the issues that non-UK nationals have been facing when going through the Home 
Office application process. Equally, it became clear that engaging with other local and 
national services and institutions (e.g. GP practices, schools, council offices, foreign 

consulates, etc.) has been a struggle for many and left a great number of individuals 
in major distress. In some cases, this has led to the clients falling victims of pseudo 

advisers. Under the pretence of support, such individuals would charge large amounts 
of money (even up to £100) for completing applications that were free and would 
take no more than 15 minutes to complete at the initial stages.   

 
  

CASE STUDY: Windrush Scheme  
 
In the course of the project, it became apparent that a number of those 

seeking the EU Settlement Support were also eligible to apply to the Windrush 
Scheme. The Scheme has been going on for a few years now, allowing for 

submissions applications by individuals who arrived in the UK before 1988.  
 
After looking closer into the topic, it turned out that not only is the Scheme 

easier to apply for, but it also grants the successful applicants with a tangible 
evidence of their indefinite leave to remain in form of a Windrush card. This 

was a revelation and greatly welcome news for those elderly seeking the EUSS 
support who struggled to understand the concepts of the ‘digital only’ 
immigration status and share codes used to evidence it.  

 
Consequently, four individuals aged 50-80 years old received the engagement 

officer’s support in contacting the relevant Home Office team to request 
application forms, had their applications completed and evidence prepared, as 
well as biometric appointments booked in Soulihall. As a result, the clients in 

question had their permanent residence (indefinite leave to remain) in the UK 
successfully granted as part of the Windrush Scheme.    

Page 60



17 
 

4.3. Access to Services 

 

Alongside the EU Settlement Scheme assistance, face-to-face appointments became 
an opportunity for many of those seeking support to ask for crucial help in other 

areas of their lives. This was not surprising as a dedicated, migrant-focused service 
has been missing in Worcester and the county for many years now. In its absence, 
only limited numbers of families and individuals managed to access the support of the 

local CAB offices, while others remain unaware of the organisation’s ability to assist 
with various day-to-day matters, where possible addressed in the client’s mother 

tongue.  
 
Given the above, news of the additional assistance provided during the drop-in 

sessions spread quickly, proving widely popular and drawing more and more clients to 
the meetings. This, as an effect, introduced greater diversity to the drop-ins, enabling 

the engagement officer to build an even better picture of the general issues affecting 
migrant communities in the city.  
 

Whether these were queries related to benefits (including Council Tax Support, 
Universal Credit, Child Benefit, etc.), housing matters (social housing applications, 

homelessness referrals, etc.) or immigration (voluntary returns, not related to the 
EUSS), all of these either found their advice and solution with the officer in post or 
were referred further to other specialised organisations 2 . One of those was the 

Migrant Support Centre set up as part of the project.   
 

Within just a few weeks, a team of 10 volunteers recruited for the Centre underwent 
an intensive training delivered by our engagement officer and covered the most 

important issues affecting migrants. Soon after, the volunteers were involved in direct 
and regular case work, supporting clients in English or, where possible, in their own 
native languages (Polish, Romanian, Bulgarian, Ukrainian, Russian, Portuguese, and 

Kurdish). 
 

Overall, establishing the Migrant Support Centre turned out to be a great success, 
easily demonstrated by impressive statistics reached since the launch of the project in 
February 2021. These include: 

 
 10 multi-lingual volunteers trained 

 1 booking site set up and functioning https://support.likeu.org.uk/  
 304 individual bookings made via the support page since its launch on 17.04.21 
 181 individual clients supported with their queries (the number does not include 

children) 
 196 EUSS-related queries addressed by the Centre (including applications for 

children) 
 793 cases addressed by the Migrant Support Centre between Feb and July 2021. 
 

                                                                 
2 Please refer to Appendix 1. for the full list of topics addressed here. 

Page 61

https://support.likeu.org.uk/


18 
 

 

CASE STUDY: Migrants and Housing Issues 

 

Face-to-face meetings with the engagement officer attracted a number of migrant 

clients, often desperate for somebody to hear them out and to give practical advice and 

support. One of those was a newly-turned EU national who resided in the city with his 

two teenage, non-EU children. The gentleman came for advise regarding his housing 

situation as he was sharing an HMO room with his boys. Not only was the space not 

adequate for the trio, but it was also not appropriate for the children to live in such 

type of accommodation.   

 

When advising the client on the different housing options, it quickly turned out that 

neither the father nor his sons had the settlement applications in place. This was, 

therefore, addressed as a matter of priority. Without being able to evidence the status, 

the family was facing potential problems with both rentals and placement on the social 

housing list.  

 

Surprisingly, the family’s EUSS applications were processed in a speedy manner. Once 

the outcome letters arrived, it was possible to start completing the relevant 

applications (here: Housing for You register) and making the necessary housing 

referrals. Due to their circumstances and children living at the HMO, the family was 

placed high up on the social housing list. As the father displayed limited language skills 

and did not understand the application process, automatic bidding was put in place to 

assist in the process.      

 

While waiting for the successful allocation, the family remained in touch with the officer, 

asking for assistance in a number of other queries e.g. liaising with the County Council 

and schools regarding the placements for children. The father was also helped with 

setting up the appropriate benefits for the family including Universal Credit and Child 

Benefit.  

 

Eventually, within three months of being placed on the Housing Register the family was 

allocated with their own flat. This meant that the father could now provide better and 

safer living conditions for the family.  

 

 

4.4. Housing and Homelessness Support 

 

In terms of the overall numbers and casework undertaken, housing and homelessness 
support was the second most significant topic addressed as part of the project after 

the EU Settlement Scheme. This was due to a number of factors: 
 
 Foreign nationals seemed to have experienced significantly more housing-related 

issues during the pandemic and the consecutive lockdowns - Many were unable to 
pay rent following the loss of employment and while on furlough; a few also fell 

victims to housing scams and illegal evictions.  
 

 Lack of clarity over the EU Settlement Scheme, and rights of the EU nationals and 
their family members resulted in temporary confusion by the Local Authorities in 
relation to the provision of the housing and homelessness assistance.  

 
 The community engagement officer had previously worked on the Controlling 

Migration Fund project, a county-wide migrant-focused housing project and is 

Page 62



19 
 

aware of the issues that affect migrant communities within this sphere. 
 

 Alongside her role with Worcester City Council, Basia continued to work as a 
sessional staff member at Caring for Communities and People, one of the 

homeless support charities operating within the city. As such, the officer 
completed a number of additional working hours at the temporary accommodation 
provided during the pandemic by the City Council, and while supporting the 

2020/21 Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP) provision. 
 

 Drop-in sessions provided at Trinity Street Housing Advice Centre enabled easier 
and more direct access to the housing support given the team of housing officers 
present on site.   

 
The types of cases and issues addressed here varied greatly. These included: advising 

non-UK clients on housing matters (e.g. issues with the landlords, disrepairs at the 
properties), supporting the completion of the Housing for You or Housing Jigsaw 
applications online, assisting the homeless clients in accessing benefits (where 

applicable), or referring the cases further to the local partners3.   
 

CASE STUDY: Homelessness Support  

 

Throughout the project a great deal of support was offered to the EU nationals who 

were either already homeless at the time of the initiative or fell into homelessness 

during the pandemic.  

 

In one particular case the officer in post assisted in the EU Settlement Scheme journey 

of an EU national who struggled with homelessness and addictions for many years. 

The local services found it difficult to engage with the individual mainly due to the 

language barrier. 

 

The vulnerable gentleman was placed at one of the city centre’s shelters as part of the 

‘Everybody in’ campaign launched by the government during the pandemic. Since 

Basia Ligas was working there as a sessional staff member, she had easier access to 

the individual and was able to step into action right from the start.  

 

The officer quickly established that the gentleman had not yet made an application to 

the scheme due to the lack of ID and limited understanding of what the process was. 

Following several meetings with the client and after suitable funding was identified 

through the Yellow Scarf Charity, a passport appointment was booked with the Polish 

Consulate in Birmingham.  

 

While waiting for the new ID, the officer helped the local agencies (Maggs Day Centre 

and Swanswell - now Cranstoun)  to re-establish links with the client so that effective 

support could be offered. Also, a great deal of work has been done regarding the GP 

referrals, setting up the Universal Credit claim for the client, all while continuing to 

gather the necessary supporting documents for the upcoming EU Settlement Scheme 

application.  

 

Once the new passport arrived, the application was submitted via the EU Exit app. 

Here the support of the officer was particularly beneficial as the limited language skills 

and no access to the smartphone would have prevented the client from making the 

application altogether. Eventually, after months of liaising with the Home Office Team, 

                                                                 
3 Please refer to Appendix 1. for the full list of topics addressed here. 
 

Page 63



20 
 

the gentleman was finally granted the full settled status. This meant that the DWP 

accepted his pending UC application, while the homeless services were able to put him 

forward to suitable, long-term accommodation.  

 
 

The effectiveness of housing assistance and homelessness support offered to the non-
UK nationals as part of the project relied partially in the engagement officer being 
based at the Trinity Street Housing Advice Centre. This way, Basia’s expertise in 

working with the EUSS and migrants could be used by colleagues in the housing 
teams where queries were made regarding the individual’s eligibility or where the 

extra assistance was required in establishing the person’s immigration status.  
 
On the other hand, the clients themselves benefited from having a dedicated officer 

who provided an extra link between themselves and the housing teams. As such, any 
housing issues could be easily flagged up to the relevant teams (either Private Sector 

Housing or Housing Needs) and could be followed-up in a timely manner alleviating 
the client’s distress.   

  
CASE STUDY: Homeless EU Family in Need  

 

The project turned out to be life-saving for a single mother and her child who 

unexpectedly found themselves homeless upon their return to the UK.  

 

The two EU nationals had already lived in the country for over two years, however, 

they were left stranded and unable to come back from holidays due to the lockdowns. 

Once they eventually made it to Worcester, it turned out that they fell victims to a 

housing scam. The new accommodation they rented in the city and paid deposit for 

simply did not exist. 

 

After reporting the case to the local police, the family was first placed at a hotel due to 

the new of quarantine at that time. Two weeks later they were moved to the homeless 

accommodation while waiting for the local authority support. 

 

Yet again, working in her sessional role at the shelter, Basia Ligas was able to carry 

out a number of meetings with the mum, trying to establish what support could be 

offered to the family. The officer’s support turned out to be most useful when it 

emerged that the family had not applied to the EU Settlement Scheme and, as a result, 

was refused the assistance by the Worcester City Housing Team.  

 

Within just a few days, new EUSS applications for the mother and the child were in 

place. The family remained at the shelter for over two months, while the officer 

continued to champion the case with the Housing Team and the Children Services at 

the County Council. The case remained challenging as the lack of immigration status 

at the time made the family ineligible for the typical homelessness support, and other 

avenues to assistance needed to be found.  

 

Eventually, after a few weeks, the family were granted pre-settlement EU status. This 

shortly led to the case being progressed and suitable housing being allocated. The 

officer’s help did not stop here, though. Basia supported the family with furnishing 

their new flat, helped with setting up the utilities, liaised with the Housing Association 

regarding the move and connected the family to the local services (e.g. food banks, 

schools).  

 

On top of the above, the engagement officer conducted a number of training and 
workshop sessions for colleagues in the housing needs team, homelessness 

Page 64



21 
 

prevention, outreach teams, housing associations staff as well as for the homeless 
charities. These were focused mainly on the impact of the EU Settlement Scheme on 

the housing and homelessness provision as well as flagging up the areas or 
circumstances where, particularly homeless clients, may struggle with the system. 

 

4.5. Community Development 

 
As already indicated in the methodology section, the community development aspect 
of the project turned out to be highly challenging to implement, yet not entirely 

impossible to attain. We are proud, therefore, to report that despite the pandemic 
and the lockdowns, valuable and much-needed engagement with the communities 

and partner organisations has taken place.  
 
By far the most significant step that the project has attempted was that of setting up 

a working group dedicated to migrant issues. The first Migration Forum was held on 
18th Dec 2020.  

 
The meeting gathered 16 attendees representing the City Council, housing 
associations, NHS, etc. It focused on the general understanding of migration-related 

issues prevalent in the city as well as brainstorming the best ways of conducting any 
conversations on the topic in the future. The second forum took place on 24th April 

2021 and featured a guest presentation on Modern Day Slavery delivered by Andy 
Carter from the Gangmasters and Labour Abuse Authority (GLAA). Those attending 
could not only learn more about MDS in general but were also introduced to some 

specific aspects of slavery concerning migrants.  
 

Both forums were conducted via the online platform Zoom in line with the working 
arrangements at that time. Unfortunately, no further meetings took place due to the 
increasing number of cases ahead of the EU Settlement dealing on 30th June. 

 
Overall, the impression gathered from the forums and the conversations with partner 

organisations was very positive, indicating that the discussions on migrant-related 
topics are needed and should be conducted regularly. Since the migrant population in 
the city is not that significant, though, the question was raised whether a special 

forum is indeed required or perhaps the conversations could be built into other, 
already existing partnership meetings. A conclusive decision on that has not yet been 

reached and the topic remains open to further discussion.   
 
Similarly, to the forums, also the traditionally face-to-face community events started 

off online with the community engagement officer attempting to keep things going 
despite the physical limitations. This was a great opportunity to both test the 

technology and bring some intercultural and cohesion-related conversations to the 
virtual space. These included a few virtual workshops implemented as part of the Talk 

to Me Worcester campaign (initiated already in 2019) as well as the officer bringing 
the migrant-focused discussions to numerous partnership meetings happening 
throughout the year e.g. Community Engagement webinars, Worcester Inclusion 

Network (WIN), Voluntary Organisations in Worcester (VOW) or Healthy Worcester 
meetings.4 Unfortunately, the actual face-to-face events organised or co-facilitated by 

                                                                 
4 Please refer to Appendix one to see a few examples of such community engagements. 

Page 65



22 
 

our officer took place either at the end or outside the project lifetime, when Covid-19 
related restrictions were finally lifted.  

 
On top of the above, by far the most effective element of the project’s community 

development aspect was integration through volunteering. As set out in the initial 
project plan, both drop-in sessions and the community events were expected to 
generate a number of volunteering opportunities engaging representatives of migrant 

communities. While this has proven challenging on the events side of the project 
(solely due to the pandemic), the volunteering aspect turned out to be a major 

success when it comes to the launch of the Migrant Support Centre.  
 
As mentioned before, right at the start of this mini-pilot, ten multilingual volunteers 

were recruited and trained by our engagement officer in a number of key areas 
covering the most important issues affecting migrants in the city. Thanks to the 

additional human resources and their new competences developed, it was possible for 
the Migrant Support Centre to address almost 800 separate cases mentioned before.  
 

Three of the volunteers and our Community Engagement officer, Basia, received an 
additional two-week training with the Citizens Advice Bureau in Worcester. This gave 

the staff and volunteers further opportunity for learning and development which can 
be utilised while supporting clients at the Centre. At the same time, the four 

individuals trained have now become part of the CAB volunteering team and will have 
the chance to support wider audiences as part of the organisation’s work. Having 
additional multi-lingual resources and expertise on board was widely welcome by the 

CAB itself and as such presents a great legacy to the project. 
 

Unlike the volunteering aspect of the project, we found it impossible to address and 
progress effectively with activities directly linked to cohesion through employment. 
This was largely due to the pandemic and the workforce being brought to the 

standstill during the lockdowns. The only initiatives undertaken here and worth 
pointing out were: 

 
 Training of the volunteers at the Migrant Support Centre and further upskilling of 

four volunteers and staff via the CAB advisor training (as mentioned above) - It is 

expected that the additional competences developed as part of the training may 
translate in the future into the actual employment opportunities for those in 

question either with the CAB or in similar advisory or support roles.  
 

 Facilitating networking between Like U Charity and the Building Block at 

Worcester Community Trust - Based on the initial discussions, Like U wishes to set 
up and run a number of employment-related opportunities for the volunteers at 

the Centre and those interested either in upskilling or having their existing 
vocational qualifications recognised in the UK. It is expected that with the support 
of the Building Block, specialised vocational courses delivered in other languages 

will soon feature among the opportunities offered by Like U. 
 

Finally, work has also been undertaken with the view to providing training for 
organisations and charities to improve employee’s understanding of migrants’ needs. 
Majority of the training sessions and workshops delivered here constituted a part of 

the general EU Settlement Scheme information campaign. Since the Scheme has a 
major impact on the eligible applicants’ right to work, it was crucial to stress how 

significant making a timely application was.  

Page 66



23 
 

 
Unfortunately, given the pandemic and other topics taking over the priority, it was 

challenging to deliver more general, migrant-focused training sessions here. This was 
attempted towards the end of the project in the workshops delivered for the CCP and 

Onside Advocacy teams.  
 
Those interested in understanding the new immigration rules, in turn, and how they 

affect the employment of the EU and non-EU nationals in the future, were being 
signposted to the relevant partner organisations dealing with the subject matter or to 

other useful resources. It is expected that the introduction of visas for the new 
arrivals from the EU will generate further queries over time and may result in specific 
training or info sessions being offered in the future as part of similar migrant-focused 

projects. 
 

 

4.6. Community safety, health and well-being 

 

Just like in case of general community development, Covid-19 pandemic has caused 
major disruptions and pushed the two aspects of the project away from the main 

working agenda. Even though it was challenging to run any separate community 
safety as well as health and well-being related campaigns, paradoxically, the officer in 
post managed to address a number of topics through her continued engagement with 

the public and work conducted with the partner organisations.  
 

When it comes to direct work with the public, by far the most useful here were 
regular face-to-face appointments at the Guildhall, Trinity Street Housing Advice 

Centre and Migrant Support Centre which continued despite the lockdowns. On top of 
the work focusing on the EU Settlement Scheme, drop-ins were a great opportunity 
for checking in with some of the most vulnerable clients, providing an indication of 

further issues affecting the migrant communities. These included e.g. increased 
anxiety related to the EU Settlement Scheme application process and fears of being 

deported, stress over issues with access to benefits, benefits under or overpayments 
which the clients could not address themselves, neighbourly disputes with hate 
speech element leading to clients staying indoors rather than going out, mental health 

issues exacerbated by Covid-related loss of employment or furlough, general loss of 
income, lack of access to basic means (such as electricity) for extended periods of 

time during the lockdown, etc. 
 
Regardless of what the issue was, the officer managed to work with the clients to 

have these successfully addressed by: 
 

- Notifying the landlords and/or housing teams where disrepair issues were 
presented or no access to utilities was identified 

- Issuing food bank vouchers to clients on low-budgets, with medical health 

issues and those affected by homelessness 
- Referrals to partner organisations e.g.: Onside Advocacy, where the clients 

required telephone befrienders (particularly the lonely and elderly ones) 
- Supporting the clients in accessing financial assistance by referring to 

relevant partner organisations e.g.: Yellow Scarf Covid-19 Community Relief 

Fund, Red Cross cards processed by Like U, Vicars Relief Fund referrals with 

Page 67



24 
 

Maggs Day Centre, etc. 
 

All these helped to address the client’s anxieties related to the lack of income. 
Similarly, safety, health and well-being aspects of the project remained live and part 

of any ongoing discussions at forums and partnership meetings, especially the 
partnership meeting between the Home Office Immigration team and the key partners 
in the city engaged in homeless support. This ensured that the eligible non-UK 

nationals who remained homeless applied to the EU Settlement Scheme and there 
were no fears of their possible deportation after the 30th June 2021 deadline. 

 
With a dedicated officer in place both County and City Councils were able to use the 
officers’ knowledge and skills to facilitate access to service and improve 

communication with non-UK nationals during the Covid-19 pandemic. This included: 
translation of letters and other resources for the migrant communities, assisting with 

the Track and Trace process, attending partnership meetings to discuss vaccination 
hesitancy among migrants, supporting the teams in awareness-raising door knocks 
and vaccination pop-up clinics, etc.   

 

CASE STUDY: Benefits Support for Migrants 

 

A number of those approaching the engagement officer posed additional queries 

regarding the benefits system and how it worked. One particular individual found the 

process very challenging and could not understand why her Universal Credit 

application kept on being refused by DWP. 

 

A quick look into the issue revealed that the individual failed to respond to the 

mandatory questions posed on her UC Journal which resulted in the benefits request 

being closed. Here, DWP was asking for the proof of immigration status, while the lady 

did not know how to evidence it. The officer in post, therefore, agreed to take her 

through the process of generating the share codes, ensuring that the lady knew how 

to do it in the future. 

 

When attempting the code generation, it turned out that the person had no access to 

her own EUSS profile on the Home Office website altogether. The lady had her status 

done by a friend who not only put her own phone, but also used her own e-mail 

address. The two no longer communicated and hence the client was left stranded and 

disconnected from her account for months. She did not even know whether her status 

was granted.  

 

Yet again, a conversation with the EUSS Resolution Centre, facilitated by the 

engagement officer, helped to sort the issue out. The lady not only learnt that the full 

settled status was granted but also regained access to her account and was now able 

to generate the share codes as required.   

 

With this positive outcome in place, the next meetings with the client focused on 

ensuring that the correct information and documents were passed further to DWP. 

Eventually, within just four weeks, the lady had her benefits approved. She also learnt 

how to manager her UC account and communicate with her job coach despite the 

language barrier that initially made the process challenging.  

Page 68



25 
 

5. Lessons learnt and recommendations 

 
 

In order to better understand the actual learning drawn from project and its possible 
impact on any future migrant-related work carried out in the city, the following 

aspects have been analysed: 
 
 Project planning  

 Project execution 
 Outcomes achieved  

 
As indicated in the report, the pandemic had a major influence and subsequently 

adverse effect on some of the project activities. Interestingly, in spite of this, 
unexpected and yet helpful changes took place when it came to planning.  
 

In particular, the Covid-19 outbreak caused that both consideration of the initiative 
and subsequently recruitment of the new staff member were postponed until June 

2020 when the new ‘reality’ was already understood a bit better. This helped to 
ensure that the newly proposed project, though initially drafted before March 2020, 
remained fluid and was open to adjustments, particularly during the lockdowns. It 

was not until the actual project execution, though, when the real lessons started to 
emerge.  

 
The project was implemented at the time when the migrant community found itself in 
a critical and by far the most vulnerable position for decades. The ripple effects of the 

pandemic (here: people often losing jobs and the only income stream, issues with 
accommodation, relationship breakdowns) combined with Brexit and the introduction 

of the EU Settlement Scheme, highlighted how severely limited access to the migrant-
support services in Worcester has been so far. In fact, with the closure of the local 
CAB offices right at the start of the pandemic, the assistance was at that stage 

virtually non-existent.  
 

Also, feedback received from the clients around the EU Settlement Scheme itself, 
indicated that contrary to what the Home Office guidance stipulated, many of those 
eligible to apply found the process too challenging to engage with. As suggested in 

the report, the issues may have resulted from limited language skills, lack of access 
to the appropriate IT infrastructure or simply fear of making mistakes when 

submitting such an important and potentially life-changing application. Also, the 
delays related to the processing of applications at the Home Office or inability to 
obtain the key supporting documents such as IDs or passports, increased the anxiety 

levels even further. In fact, many of those approaching the project officer found 
themselves in a limbo with no access to benefits, often becoming homeless or 

displaying mental health issues resulting from the complexity of their cases.  
 
Given all these, the project responded effectively to the unprecedented ‘migrant crisis’ 

by creating a post of the new engagement officer focused specifically on the migrant 
issues when the community needed us the most. As such, having a dedicated staff 

member helped to address the challenges with and on behalf of the clients, bringing 
major relief not only to the individual members of the community but also their 

families in general. 
 

Page 69



26 
 

CASE STUDY: EUSS Support for Vulnerable Individuals 

 

One of the most touching engagements within the project was that of supporting a 

family of three adults to go through the EUSS process.  

 

Initially, these were the elderly parents who first approached the Customers Services 

team with a request for help. From there they were directed to the Trinity Street 

Housing Advice Centre where our officer was running bi-weekly face-to-face 

appointments.  

 

At first, the case seemed like any other. The EU nationals, who made Worcester their 

new home after retirement, arranged separate meetings with the officer. It was during 

those appointments when it became clear that a third family member required 

assistance in the process. The couple’s daughter, however, a lady already in her 40s, 

remained in strict self-isolation due to continued rounds of cancer treatments.   

 

As it was not possible for the lady to come to the Centre due to the fear of Covid and 

increased danger to her health, the officer suggested a home visit with another 

colleague. An alternative solution was also given, that is, ringing the vulnerable 

individual back home and assisting in the process online. The lady would have needed 

to go through the application on her own, though.  

 

The options continued to be discussed with the parents as they attended their 

appointments with the officer. Since the couple had not worked in the UK and had no 

National Insurance Numbers, the Home Office kept on requesting new evidence from 

the two in order to process their applications. Finding the documents, however, turned 

out to be challenging due to different names and spellings being used on the bills, 

Council Tax records or even the bank statements.  

 

With the need for the new meetings to take place, it was clear that the elderly parents 

were becoming impatient and disappointed with the process. As they explained, they 

were pleased with the officer’s support but found the whole EUSS application too 

challenging. They did not see it suitable and taking into account the vulnerable nature 

of some individuals (here, themselves and their daughter). 

 

Eventually, a few months into the officer’s work with the couple, the two asked for  a 

joint meeting to finalise the process. This time, they brought an unexpected guest. 

Their daughter was getting anxious at home and unsure of her own situation, and she 

agreed to come out of isolation to complete the application with the officer.  

 

When the three arrived at the Trinity Street Housing Advice Centre, they were invited 

to a separate pod, rather than an open desk usually used for the meetings. While the 

officer got down straight to the conversation with the daughter and work on her EUSS 

application, it was difficult not to notice the parents’ excitement and emotions. The 

father kept on taking photos to document the family’s first ever outing for 15 years 

when their daughter started to isolate! 

 

The EUSS application process continued over the next few weeks, however, that 

memorable meeting was the first and the last one when the officer had the chance to 

see the client. Her parents kept on coming to bring new evidence as the Home Office 

was not convinced whether she is eligible to the Scheme. The lady had no footprint in 

the UK apart from constant shipments of medicines to her UK address.  

 

Finally, after weeks of liaising with the EUSS Resolution team and letters written by 

the parents pleading the Home Office for understanding in this unusual case, all three 

were successfully granted their settled status.  
    

Page 70



27 
 

The ratio of fully completed and successfully processed EU Settlement Scheme 
applications cannot be attributed to the project alone. It is our strong belief, though, 

that assisting the clients in going through the process significantly decreased the 
numbers of potentially ineligible submissions. The support offered here was vital 

particularly where key evidence was hard to obtain or missing (often the case of 
homeless individuals) or when dealing with the elderly who simply could not 
comprehend the notion of a virtual immigration status.   

   
 

 

Total EUSS 

applications 

Settled 

status 

Pre-settled 

status 

Other 

outcomes* 

Jun-20 5,690 3,190 2,420 80 

Sep-20 6,350 3,530 2,690 130 

Dec-20 7,380 3,990 3,220 170 

Mar-21 8,130 4,320 3,570 250 

Jun-21 8,850 4,700 3,780 370 

Sep-21 9,420 5,000 3,950 300 

   
Table 1. Home Office quarterly EU Settlement Scheme statistics for Worcester City  
(Source: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/eu-settlement-scheme-quarterly-

statistics-june-2021)   
 

Overall, the demand for the engagement officer’s time right from the very start of the 
project yet again pointed out to the shortages within the general migrant support 
available in Worcester at the time. These were also the numbers and the diversity of 

cases brought by the clients that encouraged the team to look beyond the project. As 
such, we focused on addressing the lack of migrant assistance in the city by applying 

long-term, and sustainable measures already during the project lifetime.  
 
As a result, as stated before, part of the project funding was allocated early on to 

piloting the Migrant Support Centre and training a cohort of multi-lingual volunteers. 
This was crucial as the language barrier together with lack of understanding of how to 

navigate the ‘system’ in the UK, continues to be one of major obstacles preventing 
numerous non-UK nationals from accessing help. This on its own meant that eligible 
EUSS applicants or other non-UK nationals residing in Worcester and requiring 

support, finally had access to a vital and unique service that no other authority 
offered locally5.  

 
Although the ‘Thriving migrants’ project has now come to an end, we are proud to see 
that its legacy continues through the Migrant Support Centre. The place still operates 

and opens its doors to new clients pouring in from all over Worcestershire and the 
neighbouring counties. Also, already during the pilot phase, Like U charity managed 

to secure the Big Lottery funding ensuring that the organisation continues to operate 
and serve the migrant communities in the city. Moreover, it is expected that over 
time the booking website set up at the start of the project will be rebuilt and 

extended to provide some actual first-hand advice for the clients. Completing this 
task within the project turned out to be impossible due to the relevant human 

resources and capacity lacking on the side of Like U at the time. 

                                                                 
5 Similar service related to the EU Settlement Scheme support had already been delivered by Basia Ligas 
and Yellow Scarf Charity since 2019, yet was limited to the eligible applicants in Evesham only. 

Page 71

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/eu-settlement-scheme-quarterly-statistics-june-2021)
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/eu-settlement-scheme-quarterly-statistics-june-2021)


28 
 

 
Additionally, the project officer’s role has been extended until 31st March 2022. 

Although Basia will no longer be engaged in direct case work, she remains available to 
staff at the Council and volunteers at the CAB offices, able to assist with further 

queries regarding the Settlement Scheme and general migrant support. She will also 
continue using her knowledge and skills, particularly within the areas of benefits 
assistance and housing, when engaging with the general public as part of the new 

ABCD methodology (Asset Based Community Development).  
 

Overall, the project can be deemed as a successful attempt in yet again bringing the 
migrant issues to the forefront of the public and the local authorities’ attention. Not 
only did it contribute to highlighting the challenges that non-UK nationals face on the 

daily basis, but it also helped address these by providing practical support and 
introducing the new, migrant-focused service in the city.   

 
Despite the above, there should be no illusion here that work with the migrant 
communities is finished. There is a lot more that can and should be done here. While 

the attempts to put the relevant structures and services in place to ensure continuous 
migrant support have been made, these should be backed up with regular funding to 

help sustain the results of the project and build on its achievements further.  
 

Also, a separate piece of work should be done in relation to bringing the migrant 
communities to the wider discourse. Whether this is done by consulting with the 
Migrant Support Centre, Like U and Worcestershire Polish Association, community 

cohesion attempts focused on developing new training, employment and volunteering 
opportunities for non-UK nationals or simply promoting cultural initiatives such as 

multicultural picnics or Worcester Mela, it is important that migrants have their voices 
heard and duly represented. This, in turn, would help to continue building the bridges 
of understanding, while acknowledging that migrants are as much part of the local 

communities as anyone else.   
 

Page 72



29 
 

 

6. Appendix 1.  
 
 

 

EU Settlement Scheme Support  

 

Awareness-raising 

campaign 

Specific tasks undertaken here included: 

 
- Creation of a special pull-up banner for the Trinity Street Housing Advice Centre, 

informing the clients visiting the venue of the EUSS services offered there every 

Wednesday. This was combined with the creation and distribution of EUSS posters 
signposting the potential clients to the Community Engagement Officer. These 

were translated into: Polish, Romanian, Portuguese and Bulgarian.  
 

- Creation of and continuous amendments to the EUSS-related info-graphics, one 
on how to prove the status and one on how to amend the details. These were 

initially available in English and Polish and were being distributed both among the 
clients and colleagues in other support services. The updated info-graphics have 

now also been translated to: Portuguese and Romanian as the languages 
representing the biggest migrant groups in the city.  

- Regular posts (including both information and videos) on the Scheme prepared 
and published on social media, utilising the community engagement Facebook 

page, and pages and websites of fellow support organisations e.g. Like U, 
European Connections Forum, Yellow Scarf, Facebook groups utilised by the 

specific migrant groups e.g. Poles, Italians and Romanians in Worcester etc.  

 
- Articles on EUSS and related topics published in City Life magazine, tenants and 

landlords newsletters prepared by Private Sector Housing Team.  

- Participation in two live EUSS webinars and Q&A sessions organised by the Polish 

P
age 73



30 
 

Expats Association in Birmingham  
 

- EUSS updates on the Community Engagement webinars and Migration Forum   

- Dedicated EUSS presentations, workshops and training sessions conducted for a 

number of local and regional partners including: Housing Officers at Worcester 
City Council, CAB volunteers at the offices in Worcester and Hereford, City Council 

Customer Services team, key managers at Rooftop Housing (covering Worcester, 
Wychavon District and Gloucester), homeless organisations and services (Caring 

for Communities and People, Street Kitchen), attendees of the Healthy Worcester 
Forum, etc.  

- Regular communication and advice for partner agencies operating in Worcester 
City or across wider West Midlands region continues. Throughout the project, the 

engagement officer has made contact and utilised the support of over 50 different 
organisations, the key ones including: Maggs Day Centre, CCP, Yellow Scarf, 

Platform Housing Group, Rooftop, Like U, CAB and CAB WHABAC, Worcestershire 
County Council Social Services, NHS services and GP practices, etc. 

 

- Continuous awareness-raising during case work. 

In the first part of the project, awareness-raising activities focused on promoting 

the Scheme and ensuring that those eligible to apply do so in time. From January 
2021, additional work has been undertaken in the areas of: proving the status 

(how to generate share codes), applying without valid IDs, ensuring that parents 
applied for their children, etc.   

EU Settlement Scheme - 
Targeted support and case 

work  

Casework constituted the central element to the project and the community 
engagement role. As indicated before, from Sept 2020 until Aug 2021, the officer 

in post held regular meetings with the migrant clients seeking the EUSS Support. 

This included: 
 

P
age 74



31 
 

- Support in applying to the EU Settlement Scheme using the EUexit phone 
application - A number of clients struggled with the process as their devices were 

either not compatible with the Home Office app, the individuals lacked the 
language skills necessary to understand the process and complete the application 

correctly or were simply scared to do that on their own.  
 

- Assistance in requesting paper applications from the Home Office and supporting 
clients in completing those - paper forms were initially introduced by the Home 

Office to enable the submission of the EUSS applications by non-EU/EEA eligible 
clients. Over time and closer to the June 21 deadline, though, these were also 

extended over to applicants without valid IDs, including new-born children who 
were not automatically British at birth.   

 
- Regular calls to the Home Office EU Settlement Scheme Resolution Centre - 

these were being made either as requests for advice or following communication 
between the Home Office and the clients. The number of such calls increased 

significantly towards the end of the project as more and more applicants fund it 

impossible to connect trough to the EUSS case workers. Luckily, in spring 2021 
the Home Office opened a special line for the support organisations (such as our 

service) and the engagement officer was able to help progress numerous 
outstanding cases.  

 
- Assisting clients in gathering relevant evidence to support their EUSS 

applications - typically where request for evidence was made, the client had to 
provide enough documentation to cover minimum 6 months out of each 5 years 

(settled status) or any evidence covering Jun-Dec 2020 (pre-settled status) to 
demonstrated that the UK is now their permanent home. Subsequently, this 

activity additionally involved: contacting GP practices, schools, employment 
agencies or direct employers, HMRC, other support services e.g. probation, 

homeless charities etc. with the view to obtaining enough evidence for the clients.  
   

P
age 75



32 
 

- Assisting in the EUSS cases of clients with previous criminal convictions - on top 
of the above, this typically involved contacting relevant police forces (including 

those out of area), liaising with ACRO criminal Records Office where the clients’ 
records needed updating/correcting, contacting relevant fine-issuing bodies e.g. 

British Transport Police or British Railway to ensure that the case has been 
completed and the Home Office can progress with the EUSS application.  

 
- Supporting clients in monitoring the progress of their applications - this was 

done either by checking their inboxes or EUSS profiles on the Home Office. Often, 
the support also included contacting the EUSS Resolution Centre to understand 

what is holding a given application back.  
 

- Extra case work with clients whose applications have been rejected, involving 
help in completing ‘administrative review’ forms.  

 
- Where clients did not hold valid IDs, making contact with the relevant foreign 

consulates and arranging ID appointments.  

 
- Special ‘Windrush’ case work with the elderly where they arrived in the UK 

before 1988 - those eligible for the Windrush Scheme have been assisted in 
contacting the relevant Home Office team to request application forms, had their 

applications completed and evidence prepared by the community engagement 
officer, biometric appointments booked, etc. Four 50–70-year-old clients had their 

permanent residence (indefinite leave to remain) in the UK successfully confirmed 
as part of the Windrush Scheme.    

 
- Continuous awareness-raising related to the EUSS application process, including: 

guiding the clients in checking their status and ensuring that they understand how 
to prove it to others by generating special share codes, ensuring that the clients 

know how to maintain the correctness of their data on the Home Office site (e.g. 
amending their contact details if needed, updating the ID once new one is issued, 

P
age 76



33 
 

etc.), providing advice on EUSS for children and other family members either 
already in the UK or joining later in the future, etc.  

 
- Assisting clients in evidencing their status for the relevant bodies e.g. DWP, 

housing, etc.  
 

- Regular e-mail exchange and telephone consultations with colleagues seeking 
specific EUSS-related help for their clients e.g. homelessness services (CCP, 

Maggs Day Centre), Probation, WCC housing team, CAB volunteers, Cranstoun, 
Like U, etc. 

 

Access to Services 
 

Drop-in clinic While the EU Settlement Scheme efforts constituted the central part of the role, it 
was clear that those coming for assistance often required much wider support. 

Hence, the drop-in sessions mentioned above frequently covered additional topics 
such as: 

 
- Information and practical help in accessing Universal Credit, including: setting up 

or retrieving accounts (where these were blocked or details were lost), completing 
the initial UC applications, assisting in first calls with DWP (where the client was 

particularly vulnerable), communicating with DWP where the client requested 

extra support, checking the clients’ journals (especially where lack of internet 
access or language barrier prevented the client from doing that themselves), 

clarifying issues around payments, advising on housing costs and supporting client 
in collecting relevant details, etc.   

 
- Support in applying for other benefits and support e.g. Council Tax Reductions, 

Council Tax Support, Child Benefit, Personal Independent Payment, etc. 
  

- Signposting clients to other relevant agencies where further additional assistance 

P
age 77



34 
 

could have been given (e.g. DIAL for PIP and similar benefits). 
 

- Issuing food bank vouchers (34 in total) or signposting the clients for food 
deliveries (including bi-weekly hot meals provided by Like U Charity)  

 
- Securing energy vouchers for vulnerable clients, both during winter  

 
- Supporting clients in setting up bank accounts for benefits purposes 

 
- Assisting clients in communicating with relevant consulates regarding new IDs 

(non-EUSS related); Effective collaboration has been established particularly with 
the Polish Consulate in Birmingham and Portuguese Consulate in Manchester. 

Altogether, over 50 Polish and Portuguese consular appointments have been 
successfully arranged.     

 
- Assisting colleagues in communication with foreign consulates regarding 

voluntary returns or repatriation queries    

 
- Immigration-related support for non-European clients - arranging for biometric 

appointments, signposting to relevant support organisations for clients with NRPF 
(e.g. Migrant Help), liaising with the Home Office regarding regulating the status 

of irregular clients, responding to court queries where relevant, assisting asylum 
seekers in accessing help from relevant bodies, etc.  

 
- Covid-related support: helping clients access food bank or arrange for food 

deliveries, apply for self-isolation payment (where applicable), flagging the most 
vulnerable clients up to the ‘shielding’ programmes   

 
- Advising clients affected by financial scams 

 
- Assistance in accessing financial support e.g. via British Bed Cross funding for 

P
age 78



35 
 

those with no income, Yellow Scarf Covid-19 Community Relief Fund for members 
of minority groups affected by the pandemic 

 
- Assisting with the elections and Census-related queries, including the completion 

of a few questionnaires  
 

- Helping vulnerable clients access medical help either via their GP or A&E - 
liaising with medical personnel where needed 

 

Migrant needs survey Given the pandemic and difficult conditions that the services were faced with, it 

turned out to be far too challenging for us to conduct a migrant needs survey. The 

topic was raised on a number of occasions during the Migrant Support Centre 
volunteer training, however, the team decided not to implement it at this stage. 

We had already known from our previous engagement with the communities what 
the issues were and hence both the volunteer training and work of the MSC were 

planned accordingly.  
 

Also, one of the main outcomes expected to be outlined by the survey was lack of 
or gaps in services provision focused on the migrant communities. Since this had 

been resolved by setting up the Support Centre and large numbers of clients 
accessing the support, it was felt that the survey became obsolete at this stage. 

 

Housing and Homelessness Support 
 

Assisting the existing 

teams and services 

(housing needs, 

homelessness prevention, 

outreach teams, etc.) in 

addressing cases involving 

migrants    

As part of her workload here, Basia Ligas successfully engaged and supported the 
clients in the following: 

 
- Facilitating communication between clients and their landlords, estate agents or 

housing associations e.g. to flag up need for repairs, clarify rent-related queries 
 

- Supporting clients in completing Housing for You applications as well as 

P
age 79



36 
 

 collecting relevant documentation 
 

- Enabling clients to access homelessness assistance by completing Housing 
Jigsaw applications and following-up in the cases with the Housing Needs team   

 
- Supporting homeless clients in accessing benefits and applying to the EU 

Settlement Scheme  
 

- Advising clients (particularly single women, often with children) on housing 
matters following a breakdown of a relationship or illegal evictions 

 
- Liaising with colleagues in Housing Needs Team regarding specific cases and 

pushing these forward   
 

- Assisting clients in flagging up poor property standards or disputes with the 
landlords to the PSH Team 

 

- Advising colleagues in housing and homelessness services on the specific issues 
related to non-UK beneficiaries  

 
- Referring cases to partner organisations: Caring for Communities and People, 

Maggs Day Centre (including: Maggs Clothing project), Street Kitchen teams, 
supported accommodation providers within Worcestershire and beyond, etc.  

 
On top of the above, the officer conducted a number of training and workshop 

sessions for colleagues in housing needs team, homelessness prevention, outreach 
teams, housing associations staff as well as homeless charities. These were focused 

mainly on the impact of the EU Settlement Scheme on the housing and 
homelessness provision as well as clarifying where, particularly homeless clients, 

may struggle with the system. 
 

P
age 80



37 
 

Community Development  
 

Community events e.g. 
Talk to Me Worcester 

Campaign, multicultural 
picnics, promotion of 

cultural heritage 

The Community Development aspect of the project has been by far the most 
challenging one to address. This was predominantly due to the pandemic and the 

subsequent lockdowns that hampered any attempts of facilitating face-to-face 
engagement with the public. In spite of that, work has been attempted here and 

resulted in the following:   
 

- Talk to Me Worcester Campaign was re-launched on 26th Oct 2020 with the view 
to facilitating both online and offline engagement with the communities. A special 

video featuring the Mayor of Worcester, Cllr Jo Hodges, was recorded to mark the 

occasion.  
 

- Basia continued to regularly attend the VOW meetings (Voluntary Organisations 
in Worcester) with the view to promote the campaign and develop contacts with 

organisations across the city 
 

- Talk to Me Worcester online workshop held on 8th December - the meeting was 
an opportunity to yet again promote the campaign and invite attendees to 

generate some ideas on how the initiative could be implemented during the 
lockdown. 

 
- TTMW Campaign presented to the wider group of organisations during the 

Community Services webinar on 11th Dec 2020  
 

- The engagement officer joined the Worcestershire Chinese Association for the 

preparation and running of the Chinese New Year 2021. The main event featured 
three-hour virtual celebration organised on 21st February. Also, thanks to Basia’s 

support, a special meal was prepared and served on 12th Feb to the community of 
50-60 homeless and low-income individuals (Media report: 

https://cutt.ly/jQNMQZd) 

P
age 81

https://cutt.ly/jQNMQZd


38 
 

   
- Once the lockdown eased, Basia started to attend more meetings and events 

with the external organisations. These included: engagement event at ASDA co-
delivered with the Cabinet Office team to promote vaccination and lateral flow 

testing, door-knocking exercise organised as part of the pop-up vaccination clinic 
at KGV Community Centre, manning the Talk to Me Worcester stand at the 

Worcester Life Stories project public event at the Guildhall on 26th June, facilitating 
engagement through TTMW Campaign as part of summer events across the city 

(Bands in the Park at Cripplegate Park, Ronkswood Community Event on 3rd 
August, Worcester Show on 15th Aug, Multi-Cultural Family picnic on 19th Sept at 

Cripplegate Park). 
 

Further community events were planned for the end of the summer (Worcester 
Mini Mela, Tolledine Fun Day), though these already took place outside the project 

timeframe. 
 

Setting up a working 

group related to migrant 
communities 

Several attempts were made throughout the project to set up a working group or 

a forum focused on migrant issues. The topic has been discussed on a number of 
occasions with representatives of several organisations. Eventually, following the 

tips from fellow colleagues at the Community Engagement team and with the 
support of Cllr Lynn Denham, the first Migration forum was launched on 18th Dec 

2020. The meeting gathered 16 attendees and focused on the general 
understanding of migration-related issues prevalent in the city as well as 

brainstorming the best ways of conducting any conversations on the topic in the 
future.  

 

The second forum took place on 24th April 2021 and featured a guest presentation 
on Modern Day Slavery delivered by Andy Carter from GLAA. Both events were 

conducted via zoom in line with the working arrangements at that time. 
Unfortunately, no further forum meetings took place due to the increasing number 

of cases ahead of the EU Settlement dealing on 30th June. 

P
age 82



39 
 

 
Overall, the impression gathered from the forums and the conversations with 

partner organisations is that the discussions on migrant-related topics are needed 
and should be conducted regularly. Since the migrant population in the city is not 

that big, though, the question was raised whether a special forum is indeed 
required or perhaps the conversations could be built into other, already existing 

partnership meetings. A conclusive decision on that has not yet been reached and 
the topic remains open for further discussion.   

 

Integration through 

volunteering 

As set out in the initial project plan, both drop-in sessions and the community 

events were expected to generate a number of volunteering opportunities 

engaging representatives of migrant communities. While this has proven 
challenging on the events side of the project (solely due to the pandemic), the 

volunteering aspect turned out to be a major success when it comes to the 
Migrant Support Centre.  

 
As mentioned before, right at the start of this mini-pilot, ten multilingual 

volunteers were recruited and trained by Basia Ligas in a number of key areas 
covering the most important issues affecting migrants in the city. Thanks to the 

additional human resources and their new competences developed, it was possible 
for the Migrant Support Centre to address almost 800 separate cases mentioned 

above.  
 

Also, it is worth pointing out that three of the volunteers and our Community 
Engagement officer, Basia, received an additional two-week training with the 

Citizens Advice Bureau in Worcester. This gave the staff and volunteers further 

opportunity for learning and development which can be utilised while supporting 
clients at the Centre. At the same time, the four volunteers trained have now 

become part of the CAB volunteering team and will have the chance to support 
wider audiences as part of their work. Having additional multi-lingual resources 

and expertise on board was widely welcome by the CAB itself and as such 

P
age 83



40 
 

presents a great legacy to the project. 
 

Cohesion through 

employment 

 

Unfortunately, this aspect of the project has not been addressed to the extent it 
was envisioned. This was largely due to the pandemic and the workforce being 

brought to the standstill during lockdowns. The two initiatives undertaken here 
and worth pointing out are: 

 
 Training of the volunteers at the Migrant Support Centre and further upskilling 

of four volunteers and staff via the CAB advisor training - it is expected that 
the additional competences developed as part of the training may translate in 

the future into the actual employment opportunities for those in question 

either with the CAB or in similar advisory or support roles.  
 

 Facilitating networking between Like U Charity and the Building Block at 
Worcester Community Trust - Given the aspiration of Like U and other migrant-

focused initiatives run at the premises of the charity, Basia has helped to 
establish collaboration with the Building Block. Based on the initial discussions, 

Like U wishes to set up and run a number of employment-related opportunities 
for the volunteers at the Centre and those interested either in upskilling or 

having their existing vocational qualifications recognised in the UK. It is 
expected that with the support of the Building Block, specialised vocational 

courses delivered in other languages will soon feature among the opportunities 
offered by Like U. 

Provide training for 

organisations and 
charities to improve 

employee’s understanding 
of migrants’ needs. 

Majority of the training sessions and workshops delivered here constituted part of 

the general EU Settlement Scheme information campaign. Since the Scheme has a 
major impact on the eligible applicants’ right to work, it was crucial to stress how 

significant making a timely application was.  
 

Unfortunately, given the pandemic and other topics taking over the priority, it was 
challenging to deliver more general, migrant-focused training sessions. This was 

attempted towards the end of the project in the workshops delivered for the CCP 

P
age 84



41 
 

and Onside Advocacy teams.  
 

Those interested in understanding the new immigration rules, though, and how 
they affect the employment of the EU and non-EU nationals in the future, were 

being signposted to the relevant partner organisations dealing with the subject 
matter or to other useful resources. It is expected that the introduction of visas for 

the new arrivals from the EU will generate further queries over time and may 
result in specific training or info sessions being offered in the future as part of 

similar migrant-focused projects.  
 

Community Health and Well-being  

 

Awareness raising 

regarding mental health 
issues  

 
Promoting community 

engagement through 
sports and other activities 

(e.g. community cooking, 
crafts, etc.) 

Just like in case of general community development, Covid-19 pandemic has 

caused major disruptions and pushed this side of the project away from the main 
working agenda. Even though it was challenging to run any separate health and 

well-being related campaigns, paradoxically, Basia has managed to address a 
number of topics through her continued engagement with the public as well as 

work conducted with partner organisations.  
 

By far the most useful here were regular face-to-face appointments at the 
Guildhall, Trinity Street Housing Advice Centre and Migrant Support Centre which 

continued despite the lockdowns. On top of the work focusing on the EU 

Settlement Scheme, drop-ins were a great opportunity for checking in with some 
of the most vulnerable clients, providing an indication of further issues affecting 

the migrant communities. These included e.g. increased anxiety related to the EU 
Settlement Scheme application process and fears of being deported, stress over 

issues with access to benefits, benefits under or overpayments which the clients 
could not address themselves, neighbourly disputes with hate speech element 

leading to clients staying indoors rather than going out, mental health issues 
exacerbated by Covid-related loss of employment or furlough, general loss of 

income, lack of access to basic means (such as electricity) for extended periods of 

P
age 85



42 
 

time during the lockdown, etc. 
 

Regardless of what the issue was, Basia managed to work with the clients to have 
these successfully addressed via e.g.: 

 
- Notifying the landlords and/or housing teams where disrepair issues were 

presented or no access to utilities was spotted  
 

- Issuing food bank vouchers to clients on low-budgets, with medical health issues 
and those affected by homelessness 

 
- Referrals to partner organisations e.g. Onside Advocacy, where the clients 

required telephone befrienders (particularly the lonely and elderly ones) 
 

- Supporting the clients in accessing financial assistance by referring to relevant 
partner organisations e.g. Yellow Scarf Covid-19 Community Relief Fund, Red 

Cross cards processed by Like U, Vicars Relief Fund referrals with Maggs Day 

Centre, etc. All these helped to address the client’s anxieties related to the lack of 
income.  

 
On top of the above, Basia Ligas did her best to address the various community 

health and well-being aspects of the project by conducting extensive networking 
and speaking about migrant needs at the various forums and partnership 

meetings she attended e.g. Healthy Worcester.  
 

The officer also took active part in facilitating the access to and managing 
communication with non-UK nationals while supporting the City and County 

Council teams during the Covid-19 pandemic. This included: translation of letters 
and other resources for the migrant communities, assisting with the Track and 

Trace door-knocks, attending partnership meetings to discuss vaccination 
hesitancy among migrants, supporting the teams in awareness-raising door 

P
age 86



43 
 

knocks and vaccination pop-up clinics, etc.   

Community Safety  

 

Awareness raising and 

campaigning in areas 
related to: modern day 

slavery, hate speech, 

rogue landlords, COVID-
19. 

 

 

In line with the above, although the project did not present major opportunities 

for running separate community safety campaigns, Basia has ensured that the key 
messages and issues of concern were being raised or promoted appropriately. This 

included:  

- Awareness of what Modern Day Slavery is and how it affects migrants coming to 

or already living in the UK. The topic was raised as a major theme at one of the 
Migration Forums.   

- Facilitating a partnership meeting between the Home Office Immigration team 

and key partners in the city engaged in homeless support. This was to ensure that 

the eligible non-UK nationals who currently remain homeless have applied to the 
EU Settlement Scheme and there is no fear of their deportation after the 30th June 

2021 deadline. 

-Advice on rogue landlords, tenancy issues and how the EU Settlement Scheme 
process may affect non-UK nationals in housing shared via the Private Sector 

Housing team newsletters for tenants and landlords.  
 

- Supporting ongoing awareness-raising campaigns run by fellow colleagues and 
partner organisation.  

 

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Setting of the Budget for 2022/23 and Medium Term Financial Plan to 2026/27
	Appendix 1 - Service Budgets 2022-23 (Communities Committee)
	Appendix 2 - Income  Efficiency Plan (Communities Committee)
	Appendix 3 - Capital Programme 2022-2027

	6 Performance Report Quarter 3
	Appendix - Q3 2021-22Communities Quarterly Performance Report FINAL

	7 Completion Report on the Thriving EU Migrants Community and City Project (Brexit)
	Appendix - Thriving migrants - Report v1.2


